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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to this hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee.

          5                 Today we'll consider two bills, which

          6  attempts to make locations where New Yorkers gather

          7  for entertainment and socializing safer.

          8                 As we all know, New York is the

          9  entertainment capital of the world, and our

         10  establishments by and large and for the most part

         11  are free of violent incidents. Unfortunately, there

         12  have been some, and recently, in March, at a

         13  nightclub in Times Square eight people were shot and

         14  two stabbed. There were approximately 350 people in

         15  the club at the time. And that incident prompted the

         16  Speaker and myself to introduce Intro. 395.

         17                 That addresses public safety concerns

         18  highlighted by this incident by allowing the New

         19  York City Police Department, in conjunction with the

         20  Department of Consumer Affairs, to conduct security

         21  reviews of any location where a firearm or dangerous

         22  weapon is used or possessed illegally.

         23                 After the review, the Police

         24  Department can make recommendations, can or does not

         25  have to, and then the bar owner would have to
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          2  implement those recommendations. Things such as,

          3  let's say a magnatometer.

          4                 Intro. 478, which we're also looking

          5  at today was sponsored by Council Member Yassky.

          6                 This is a bill which will allow

          7  off-duty new York City police officers to provide

          8  security at establishments licensed to sell alcohol

          9  or beer.

         10                 This program would be run through the

         11  New York Police Departments paid detail unit, which

         12  allows officers to provide security at certain

         13  locations when off duty, and would limit off-duty

         14  officers to provide external and perimeter security

         15  at such establishments.

         16                 I personally think this bill is a

         17  good idea, because any time that we can get more

         18  uniformed police officers on the streets, well,

         19  that's a good thing, especially now our numbers of

         20  uniformed officers are dwindling.

         21                 We're down below 37,000 from a high

         22  two years ago of somewhere around 41,000. And

         23  obviously there are some concerns with this bill

         24  which we're going to discuss with the Police

         25  Department and others. One of them is the fact that
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          2  we may or may not be preempted by state law. I've

          3  just been given an opinion from the Counsel to the

          4  State Liquor Authority, which appears to give us

          5  permission to actually do this. And the other

          6  concern of the City is the potential liability to

          7  this City, those issues we will be discussing and we

          8  will be hearing comments about that.

          9                 We're also voting on two gun

         10  resolutions today, hopefully. We do have a quorum

         11  situation with some of our members away at a

         12  conference out of state, and if we do have enough

         13  members we'll vote on a bill, a resolution, which we

         14  heard testimony about in September. The first

         15  resolution urges Congress to reauthorize the assault

         16  weapons ban, and our second, resolution 811, urges

         17  Congress to reject two bills that seek to grant the

         18  gun industry protection against legal action, and

         19  obviously, Council Member Yassky has been

         20  spearheading that effort, makes absolutely no sense

         21  to hold an entire industry harmless from their own

         22  negligence.

         23                 So, let me first introduce my Council

         24  Members who are here with me today. On my far left,

         25  Council Member Phil Reed, and to his right, Council
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          2  Member Melinda Katz, and Council Member Yassky, and

          3  Council Member Dilan, how are you?

          4                 And I'd like to give Council Member

          5  Yassky, who is the prime sponsor of our bill,

          6  regarding the paid detail, an opportunity to make a

          7  brief statement.

          8                 Council Member Yassky.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Chair.

         11                 First, I just want to thank you,

         12  again, for your leadership on this issue and on

         13  these bills, two bills in particular. I look forward

         14  -- I won't make a lengthy statement since I look

         15  forward to this hearing as a chance to explore this

         16  issue. I will just say it is clear to me that the

         17  City needs to do more to help neighborhoods co-exist

         18  with nightlife establishments. Nightlife is an

         19  integral part of New York City, it's part of what

         20  brings people to New York, it's part of what makes

         21  people want to live in New York. At the same time as

         22  representing a district that includes many nightlife

         23  establishments in Williamsburg in particular,

         24  sometimes residents have to put up with people

         25  milling about on the street and making noise,
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          2  leaving litter, and occasionally, very occasionally

          3  but once in awhile even worse.

          4                 Occasionally there is violence. A

          5  year ago the stabbing outside the Gunica Club. Just

          6  two weeks ago there was a shooting outside a club in

          7  my district, a bar really, in my district, that

          8  stemmed from a fight that had begun inside the

          9  establishment.

         10                 And the City needs to help, and one

         11  way we can help is by allowing the nightlife

         12  establishments to help the neighborhoods themselves

         13  by hiring off-duty officers. That's what this bill

         14  is there to do. We do this for places like Shea

         15  Stadium and Madison Square Garden. We let movie

         16  theaters do this. There's a movie theater in my

         17  district that hires a paid detail person when they

         18  have late movies on Friday and Saturday night, and

         19  it works just great. There is nothing like a

         20  uniformed presence to maintain order to make sure

         21  the people behave themselves.

         22                 The Police Department's position on

         23  this has been that under state law, establishments

         24  that sell alcohol cannot hire police officers even

         25  off duty. I hope that today we will see the
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          2  Department recognize that that position really is

          3  not sustainable.

          4                 We have, this is the discussions

          5  we've been having, but now we finally do have an

          6  opinion from the Counsel to the State Liquor

          7  Authority that states unequivocally, I am of the

          8  view that the proposed employment of the paid detail

          9  unit does not contravene Section 128 of the

         10  Alcoholic Beverage Control Law. That really just

         11  restates what the courts have found already. So, I

         12  hope that we won't hear that argument again, because

         13  I just think that's not sustainable.

         14                 Again, thank you, Mr. Chair, for your

         15  tremendous leadership.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 There is some confusion as to the

         19  whole paid detail unit, so we'll be using this

         20  hearing as an opportunity to do some oversight over

         21  that.

         22                 That being said, let me introduce our

         23  two witnesses that will begin the hearing. Deputy

         24  Chief Edwin Young, and Assistant Deputy Commissioner

         25  Thomas Deepfner. I'm not sure if I pronounced that
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          2  correctly.

          3                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DEEPFNER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It is? Thank

          6  you.

          7                 And thank you, both, gentlemen, for

          8  being here today, and the floor is yours.

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Good morning, Mr.

         10  Chairman and members of the Council. I am Deputy

         11  Chief Edwin Young, and I am pleased to be here today

         12  on behalf of the Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly

         13  and Chief of the Department Joseph Esposito to

         14  discuss the two bills before you today.

         15                 Intro. No. 395 would add a new

         16  Section, 10-162, to the Administrative Code. It

         17  would establish a new procedure when a violation of

         18  the provisions of Article 265 of the penal law,

         19  firearms and other dangerous weapons, takes place in

         20  a cabaret, catering establishment a public dance

         21  hall, licensed by the Department of Consumer

         22  Affairs.

         23                 In such a case the Police Department,

         24  in conjunction with the Department of Consumer

         25  Affairs, may conduct a review of the premises
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          2  security measures, procedures and protocols.

          3                 If after this review the Police

          4  Department determined to issue recommendations to

          5  the establishment for improvement of its security

          6  measures, the establishment would be required to

          7  implement the recommendation within 30 days.

          8                 Failure to do so would result in a

          9  civil penalty of between 1,000 and 2,500 dollars or

         10  suspension of the establishment's license to do

         11  business.

         12                 Intro. No. 395 would provide the

         13  Police Department and the Department of Consumer

         14  Affairs with an excellent tool to enhance the

         15  protection of the public to requiring appropriate

         16  security measures to be implemented in cabarets and

         17  catering halls where a weapons violation has

         18  occurred and we fully support this laudable goal. We

         19  have closely reviewed the bill and would like to

         20  make some comments and suggestions about the

         21  language of the bill in the interest of working with

         22  you to create a reasonable and practical process for

         23  implementing its intent.

         24                 First, it's important that the bill

         25  not be misconstrued as creating liability on the
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          2  part of the City, should an unfortunate incident

          3  occur after security measures recommended by the

          4  Police Department are implemented.

          5                 Thus, we look forward to working with

          6  the Committee to clarify the bill does not create

          7  any additional liability for the City.

          8                 Second, it should be noted that the

          9  legislative declaration refers exclusively to guns,

         10  yet the process contemplated by the bill refers to

         11  any violation of article 265 of the penal law.

         12                 Article 265 makes illegal the mere

         13  possession of any weapons other than guns, such as

         14  blackjacks, metal knuckles or certain types of

         15  knives, such as switchblades.

         16                 Article 265 also makes unlawful the

         17  possession of other weapons, such as dangerous

         18  knives, razors or imitation pistols when they are

         19  possessed with intent to use them unlawfully against

         20  another.

         21                 Therefore, we need to discuss further

         22  whether any violation of Article 265 should serve to

         23  initiate the process or whether the bill should

         24  apply to a particular subset of such violations.

         25                 Third, we believe that it would be
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          2  important to set forth a procedure implementing to

          3  new law. Possibly in official rules to be

          4  promulgated by the Police Commissioner, so that

          5  cabarets and catering establishments would have

          6  proper notice of the potential consequences of a

          7  weapons violation on their premises.

          8                 Although we would review

          9  establishments under the law on an individual basis,

         10  the rules could include general parameters for

         11  security measures, depending upon the size and

         12  operating conditions of the location, and could

         13  indicate more specifically the factors that might

         14  apply to the decision about when a review might be

         15  initiated.

         16                 Fourth, we suggest the bill might

         17  include a process for business owners who disagree

         18  with the Police Department's recommendations, so

         19  that they would have an opportunity to be heard

         20  before the business fails to comply and the next

         21  step of a civil penalty or license suspension is

         22  taken.

         23                 This could be made in the form of a

         24  written comment or appeal of the recommendation,

         25  with a review by a Police Department supervisor and
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          2  a written response after which the business would

          3  have specific time period to comply or face penalty

          4  provisions.

          5                 Fifth, the penalty provisions in the

          6  bill do not include a description of the intended

          7  enforcement mechanism for compliance.

          8                 We would welcome working with you to

          9  determine the best way to initiate a notice of

         10  violation of this section and an adjudication of the

         11  penalty.

         12                 For example, it would be helpful to

         13  include a penalty schedule which would set forth

         14  parameters for monetary penalties as opposed to a

         15  suspension of a license.

         16                 In sum, we share your concern for

         17  enhancing patient safety in cabarets and catering

         18  establishments and look forward to working together

         19  to create the reasonable and workable process

         20  introduced by the bill.

         21                 I would like to address the other

         22  bill before you, Intro. No. 478-A, for which we do

         23  not share the same enthusiasm.

         24                 Intro 478-A would require the Police

         25  Department to allow New York City police officers to
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          2  work off duty in uniform as part of the Police

          3  Department's paid detail program, performing

          4  exterior security services for bars and other

          5  premises licensed to sell beer or alcohol.

          6                 For those unfamiliar with the Paid

          7  Detail Program, I will briefly describe how it

          8  works. With the permission of their commanding

          9  officers, police officers seeking off-duty

         10  employment may apply to the Paid Detail Unit for

         11  available off-duty security work which is performed

         12  in uniform.

         13                 The Paid Detail Unit coordinates the

         14  program with a wide variety of participating

         15  companies and organizations and makes assignments

         16  available to police officers on either a rotating or

         17  emergency basis, depending upon the amount of notice

         18  that the potential employer can provide.

         19                 Police officers are paid by check

         20  from the off-duty employer distributed to them

         21  through the Paid Detail Unit.

         22                 As with all off-duty employment, New

         23  York City police officers are prohibited by state

         24  law and by department rule from being either

         25  directly or indirectly interested in the
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          2  manufacturer or sale of alcoholic beverages.

          3                 Section 128 of the New York State

          4  Alcoholic Beverage Control Law absolutely prohibits

          5  the activity contemplated by Intro. 478-A, and we

          6  reject the bill, not only for this reason but also

          7  because it represents bad public policy.

          8                 We note that the bill's legislative

          9  findings refer to an Appellate Division case from

         10  1986 in support. In fact, the case does not apply to

         11  the situation presented in the bill, since the court

         12  was ruling on a different matter, whether a

         13  regulation issued by the State Liquor Authority was

         14  within the authority's power to promulgate.

         15                 It is absolutely clear that a police

         16  officer working even exterior security services only

         17  commits a misdemeanor when he or she works for a

         18  bar.

         19                 There are certain circumstances in

         20  which the law allows off-duty employment of police

         21  officers related to the sale of alcoholic beverages;

         22  for example, paid details assigned to sports events

         23  where the sale of alcohol is tangential to the

         24  business. However, the legislative intent of Intro.

         25  478-A is to allow off-duty employment in exactly
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          2  those places, nightclubs, bars and restaurants where

          3  the sale of alcohol is central to the conduct of the

          4  business.

          5                 The only exception to the ban on

          6  off-duty employment specifically permitted by Police

          7  Department regulation is employment by a police

          8  officer in a premise licensed to sell beer at retail

          9  or off-premises consumption such as supermarkets and

         10  grocery stores as allowed by Section 128-A of the

         11  Alcoholic Beverage Control Law, as long as the

         12  officer does not handle the alcoholic beverage.

         13                 We also note that notwithstanding the

         14  language in the legislative findings referring to

         15  the Police Commissioner's discretion to all police

         16  officers to work for bars, the proposed language of

         17  Section 14-151 itself speaks otherwise.

         18                 It states that members of the police

         19  force shall be permitted to work while off-duty at

         20  such locations.

         21                 Beyond respecting the plain language

         22  of state law enacted in 1934, there are unequivocal

         23  reasons of why this bill must be rejected.

         24                 The bill would create situations in

         25  which police officers would be placed in untenable
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          2  positions of inherent conflict.

          3                 For example, if the officer were to

          4  observe illegal conduct, such as underage sales

          5  inside the premise, by purportedly limiting the

          6  officer's function to external security, the bill

          7  ignores the inevitable situation which would occur

          8  if the bar owner is faced with an unruly patron

          9  inside the premise.

         10                 Officers working paid details do not

         11  generally have portable radios and are not

         12  accompanied by uniform supervisors, unless the paid

         13  detail is of a significant number.

         14                 Off-duty employment at bar places the

         15  officer in unnecessary danger, exposes the officer

         16  to increased corruption hazards and creates the risk

         17  of extensive potential liability for the City.

         18                 It is illegal under state law and

         19  unacceptable to the Police Department as a policy

         20  matter, and we strongly urge the Committee to reject

         21  the proposal.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  discuss these important bills, and we will be

         24  pleased to answer any questions you may have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chief
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          2  Young.

          3                 Let me start then with the one where

          4  you fully support our laudable goal so we're on the

          5  same page.

          6                 That's Intro. 395, again, which would

          7  allow you to do security review. Thank you for your

          8  comments, they are most helpful. Especially the one

          9  which would include a process for business owners

         10  who disagree with the Police Department's

         11  recommendation, we will ensure that that gets into

         12  this bill. The first thing you said here is you did

         13  not know whether this bill pertained to weapons

         14  other than guns. You said we need to discuss further

         15  whether a violation of Article 265 should serve to

         16  initiate the process. Well, that's a good question.

         17  Let's discuss it.

         18                 Do you believe that this bill should

         19  apply to weapons other than guns?

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Yes, sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have to agree.

         22  And I will go back and redraft it so that's clear.

         23                 The other question I had, and I don't

         24  believe you addressed this, right now this bill only

         25  pertains to licensed cabarets; would you recommend
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          2  that this bill also apply to restaurants and bars?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: That would have

          4  to be reviewed, given the extensive number of

          5  licensed premises that exist in the City relative to

          6  a doable operation for the Police Department.

          7  Certainly on its face this is something that should

          8  be explored.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned

         10  briefly what type of reviews would occur. Let's

         11  flesh that out a little bit. If this bill were

         12  passed into law, what do you envision, a security

         13  review to encompass?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: We will look at

         15  the camera systems that are in place, perhaps panic

         16  alarms, magnatometers, signage in the premise,

         17  prohibiting weapons, we look at security lighting

         18  around the exterior of the premises and proprietary

         19  parking areas. We check windows, for example, in the

         20  bathroom, and protect them with mesh screens to

         21  prevent the passing of weapons through the window.

         22  We would look at and check alarms and locked exit

         23  doors with Fire Department approved audible panic

         24  bars, and door alarms to detect and prevent

         25  unauthorized entry of persons and weapons, and any
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          2  other improvements deemed necessary, based on the

          3  particular type of premise or crime being committed

          4  therein.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What unit would

          6  you envision would do that review?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I would envision

          8  that it would be given oversight by the Crime

          9  Prevention Division, but the actual work might be

         10  done on a local precinct-based area by the crime

         11  prevention officer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. And I,

         13  too, share your concern about potential liability,

         14  however, you mentioned that, to the City.

         15                 And for those who aren't former

         16  attorneys, that the City does take action, then it

         17  may become liable as someone could prove it didn't

         18  take enough action. So, you mentioned coming up with

         19  ways to prevent that from happening, do you have any

         20  that you would suggest?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Preventing

         22  liability for the City?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I have to take

         25  that under advisement by Counsel.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We'll look

          3  forward to working with your Counsel on that to make

          4  any potential liability as minimal as possible.

          5                 Let me move now to the paid detail

          6  bill.

          7                 Let me also introduce, with a little

          8  bit of fanfare, Council Member Gentile.

          9                 We just got an opinion. Now, you

         10  state that you believe it's clear that this is a

         11  misdemeanor, but we do have an opinion now from the

         12  Counsel to the State Liquor Authority who believes

         13  that this is not a violation, and let me tell you

         14  why.

         15                 Now, I'm not saying that you're

         16  wrong. I'm just saying that it's not as clear as it

         17  originally was. Your concern with a corruption

         18  hazard and things like that and so are we, the

         19  Counsel to the State Liquor Authority states that

         20  because of the way this would be run, that won't be

         21  a problem. For example, officers will not be

         22  assigned to patrol areas within their precinct.

         23                 For example, police officers will be

         24  rotated so they don't establish any sort of

         25  relationship with a particular establishment, and
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          2  that they will be constantly under the supervision

          3  of the New York City Police Department.

          4                 Based on that, counsel does indicate,

          5  as Council Member Yassky said before, that this does

          6  not contravene Section 120 of the Alcohol Beverage

          7  and Control Law.

          8                 I know that you have some other

          9  concerns, such as unnecessary danger, which is

         10  always concern, but obviously this is not a

         11  mandatory assignment, and it's one that the officers

         12  would choose, and you're correct, it does say shall

         13  be permitted and we would change that to may be

         14  permitted to continue to give the police officers

         15  discretion.

         16                 So, your other concern, though, is

         17  extensive potential liability once again, which is

         18  also a concern for members of this Committee.

         19                 Could you go into a bit more detail

         20  about what type of liability you foresee?

         21                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DEEPFNER: If I could address that question,

         23  Councilman? I think once you have a police officer

         24  working at one of these establishments, and there is

         25  an incident that occurs, we will be looked to as
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          2  having some fault in failing to prevent the

          3  incident, things like that. So I think that's the

          4  reason for concern about additional liability that a

          5  City employee is there purportedly to prevent these

          6  kinds of things from happening. They're there,

          7  things happen anyway, and we should have done

          8  something more to stop them from occurring. It will

          9  be a vehicle for plaintiff's counsel to include the

         10  City as a party, and once the City is included as a

         11  party, the liability potential is going to be there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are you aware of

         13  whether this type of arrangement exists anywhere

         14  else in other large cities?

         15                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  DEEPFNER: I believe it may exist in other large

         17  cities. I'm not familiar with the details of how

         18  those things are worked out, whether they have

         19  provisions of law that limit liability against the

         20  municipality that provides the police officers,

         21  whether they're on-duty, I'm just not familiar with

         22  what other cities do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'm going

         24  to take a two-minute break from this questioning to

         25  vote on a few matters we have before us, because we
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          2  do happen to have a quorum at this moment, and --

          3  well, actually, we'll take a break in a few seconds,

          4  once we get the person who actually has to do the

          5  vote.

          6                 So, I'm asking my Council members not

          7  to leave the room, because we will be taking a vote

          8  very soon, and the Police Department --

          9  Sergeant-At-Arms is advised to allow no one to

         10  leave, and the police can review our security

         11  procedures.

         12                 I have many other questions, but

         13  while I'm working on taking this vote, let me pass

         14  questions over to the sponsor of this bill, David

         15  Yassky.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         17  much, Chair Vallone.

         18                 Good morning, Deputy Chief. You said

         19  in your testimony that it's absolutely clear that a

         20  police officer working even exterior security

         21  services only commits a misdemeanor when he or she

         22  works for a bar.

         23                 I take it that's because you're

         24  reading Section 128 of the Alcoholic Beverage

         25  Control Law where it says should be unlawful for any
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          2  police officer to be either directly or indirectly

          3  interested in the manufacture or sale of alcoholic

          4  beverages. That's the statute that you're saying

          5  makes it a misdemeanor for a police officer to work

          6  exterior security at a bar?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Yes, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, in the

          9  Rotuno (phonetic) case that you alluded to earlier,

         10  where the Court says, bear with me -- here it is.

         11  Where the Court says, it does not follow that

         12  Section 128 otherwise prohibits police officers from

         13  working for any employer in, or about, licensed

         14  premises, not matter how incidental is the work to

         15  the sale of alcoholic beverages.

         16                 That case to me squarely refutes the

         17  proposition that Section 128 prohibits the police

         18  officer from working for any establishment that

         19  sells alcohol, period.

         20                 It says there has to be some broader

         21  conflict of interest beyond that. Do you disagree

         22  with that?

         23                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DEEPFNER: If I could address that question,

         25  Councilman?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Please.

          3                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DEEPFNER: As we stated in the testimony, the Court

          5  of Appeals Decision in Rotuno addresses a slightly

          6  different issue, which is whether --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Let me just

          8  say, please --

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DEEPFNER: If I could answer the question? You did

         11  pose it to us.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Go ahead.

         13                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  DEEPFNER: A different issue, which is whether the

         15  State Liquor Authority had the legal authority to

         16  pass a regulation, such as it did, and the Court

         17  said that it did not. It had the ability to pass

         18  other kinds of regulations, but not that kind of

         19  regulation. So to the extent the Court addresses

         20  that issue, I think it could be considered Dicta

         21  (phonetic) and not binding. And I'm not quite sure

         22  that had this issue come up directly that the Court

         23  would come to the same conclusion.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, you're

         25  going from saying you're not quite sure that the
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          2  Court would have come to the same conclusion saying

          3  it is clear that it is a misdemeanor.

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  DEEPFNER: We believe that the law clearly prohibits

          6  what the bill would allow.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Isn't it true

          8  that generally when statutes of New York speak of an

          9  interest in something they speak of in ownership

         10  interest?

         11                 Are there other statutes where

         12  interest in something means simply to work as an

         13  employee? If I work at a gas station, do I have an

         14  interest in Mobil?

         15                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  DEEPFNER: I believe our own Conflicts of Interest

         17  laws provide that an interest equals employment,

         18  such that the person could not work for a business

         19  that does business with the City if you're also a

         20  City employee.

         21                 So, I do believe that there are

         22  situations which interest means employment.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Without

         24  speaking directly of employment?

         25                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  DEEPFNER: As I said, the Conflicts of Interest Law

          3  does define interest as constituting employment for

          4  those purposes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Can I ask if

          6  your opinion is altered at all by the opinion of the

          7  Counsel to a State Liquor Authority itself, which

          8  finds that the proposal put forward in this bill is

          9  consistent with the Beverage Control Law?

         10                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DEEPFNER: I haven't seen the opinion, but without

         12  having seen it, I would suggest that the State

         13  Liquor Authority, I mean the opinion I guess is

         14  instructive on what the State Liquor Authority

         15  thinks, but it still is not binding on the issue of

         16  whether or not it constitutes a misdemeanor.

         17                 The Court of Appeals said the State

         18  Liquor Authority was not allowed to pose regulations

         19  prohibiting such employment, so I'm not sure that

         20  the opinion of Counsel, other than being instructive

         21  on what that agency believes, would really be

         22  binding on a court in the event there was a criminal

         23  prosecution of a police officer for violating the

         24  ABC law, working for a bar.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is the State
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          2  Liquor Authority the primary agency authorized to

          3  enforce the Beverage Control Law?

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  DEEPFNER: Since the violation of the law would be a

          6  misdemeanor, the district authority would be

          7  authorized to commence a prosecution in Criminal

          8  Court of an officer who violated the law.

          9                 I'm not sure the State Liquor

         10  Authority would have anything to do with that. They

         11  do regulate and impose civil penalties for a wide

         12  variety of conduct at bars, many of which we

         13  initiate the civil administrative process for.

         14                 For example, if a police officer

         15  observes a violation of a State Liquor Authority's

         16  regulations in a bar, we would report that to the

         17  State Liquor Authority for their own administrative

         18  attention.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: This statute

         20  dates from when did you say? Is it 1934?

         21                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DEEPFNER: Yes, sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So this was

         24  enacted at the close of prohibition at a time when

         25  bars were virtually synonymous with crime or
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          2  organized crime, when a year before that there had

          3  been no such thing as a legal bar; is that correct?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I don't have a

          5  handle on the historical perspective of why and how

          6  the bill came about.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I mean, in

          8  your thinking about this issue, have you given any

          9  thought to the fact that this statute dates from a

         10  time when the sale of alcohol was synonymous with

         11  organized crime, and that today in 2003, there are

         12  current circumstances that really have nothing to do

         13  with the circumstances that led to the enactment of

         14  this statute? So, maybe a court presumably ought to

         15  interpret it in that light, as well? Have you taken

         16  that into account?

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: No, I have not.

         18                 I don't know the circumstances that

         19  the law came about in the first instance. My

         20  understanding of the law is what it is today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Despite

         22  the only Court opinion addressing the case coming

         23  out the other way, and despite the fact that the

         24  State Liquor Authority, the agency charged with

         25  enforcement of this law has come out the other way.
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          2                 Let me ask you about the policy

          3  reasons. Let's assume for a minute that you had a

          4  decision from the New York State Court of Appeals

          5  declaring employment of a police officer as

          6  envisioned in this bill was perfectly consistent

          7  with the Beverage Control Act. I take it, according

          8  to your testimony, you would still oppose the bill?

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Yes, sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That's because

         11  of the inherent conflict of interest you say? Or

         12  that's one of the reasons you put forward?

         13                 Why is there more of a conflict of

         14  interest here than in the case of somebody who works

         15  paid detail at Shea Stadium or Madison Square

         16  Garden? In other words, if somebody is working, if

         17  an officer is working paid detail outside Madison

         18  Square Garden, and a Madison Square Garden security

         19  guard assaults an individual, is that not the same

         20  conflict of interest?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I'll let Counsel

         22  respond to that with some clarity, sir.

         23                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DEEPFNER: I think there is a very significant

         25  difference between those two situations. Keep in
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          2  mind that the Police Department enforces the

          3  Alcoholic Beverage Control Law against the very

          4  businesses that are regulated by it, including

          5  criminal penalties and administrative penalties.

          6                 On a regular basis, police officers

          7  are involved in the enforcement of those laws and

          8  reporting violations of those laws to the State

          9  Liquor Authority, in making arrests for violations

         10  of those laws. And in addition, in some cases,

         11  particularly problematic places, commencing nuisance

         12  abatement actions against restaurants and bars,

         13  which, for whatever reason are creating problems in

         14  the community. It could be for under-age drinking,

         15  it could be for various violations of the ABC Law.

         16                 I think that's a lot different than a

         17  situation in which a police officer is working,

         18  whether it's at a Department store or at Yankee

         19  Stadium, they actually don't work paid detail at

         20  Shea Stadium, and they see a straight-forward

         21  violation of the criminal law, like an assault or a

         22  petty larceny or something along those lines.

         23                 We don't regulate those businesses,

         24  we do regulate the bars and restaurants that we

         25  would now be allowed to provide security in. And I
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          2  think that's also one of the reasons why, you know,

          3  the law was written in 1934, as you said, at the

          4  time when Prohibition just had recently been

          5  changed. But I think because of the fact that we are

          6  very much involved in the conduct of those

          7  businesses, as we are with enforcing laws generally,

          8  that the Statute says what it says.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: All right, Mr.

         10  Chair. I don't want to belabor this at the extent of

         11  the Committee's time, but I just have two quick

         12  questions.

         13                 One is, you talked about liability

         14  and the Chair asked about it as well; do you have

         15  some estimate as to how much liability you believe

         16  this proposal would incur? I mean, what's the

         17  magnitude of the risk to the City?

         18                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DEEPFNER: If we took the Times Square shooting where

         20  eight people were shot, just imagine the claims that

         21  would come from that.

         22                 Once the City becomes a party to one

         23  of those lawsuits, we now become basically

         24  responsible for the entire bill, and the City will

         25  obviously be in a position to pay it in the event
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          2  that there is a judgment.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, let me

          4  give you a real --

          5                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  DEEPFNER: That's just one example.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: It seems to me

          8  that a serious analysis of that question would

          9  really try and figure out how much other cities like

         10  New Rochelle, which do this, how much it's added to

         11  their liability; how much liability increase you've

         12  seen from existing paid detail activity; and indeed

         13  would take into account the fact that you may

         14  actually reduce the City's liability.

         15                 The City already gets dragged into

         16  lawsuits over violent incidents. The stabbing of the

         17  bouncer a year ago, the family of that security,

         18  private security officer, is suing New York City,

         19  because complaining about part of how the City, the

         20  Police Department, responded to the incident.

         21                 Now, the whole point of this bill is

         22  to stop violent incidents before they happen.

         23                 Right now, when there's a fight

         24  outside a bar or a club, the police inevitably get

         25  there, but by the time they get there it's already

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  too late. The whole point of this bill is to have

          3  somebody in uniform outside to make sure things

          4  never get to that point. Most, of course, to protect

          5  the public, but incidentally I think that would also

          6  reduce liability because you would have the police

          7  less frequently getting entangled in an actual

          8  violent situation.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I appreciate

         10  your indulgence.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me before I

         12  get on to the vote just briefly say two things.

         13  Regarding liability, you mentioned the knife

         14  incident, under this proposal police would be hired

         15  to patrol the area outside of the bar, and if

         16  they're not negligent, then they're not liability

         17  for guns or knives inside. We're talking about the

         18  paid detail now, the City is not liable for guns or

         19  incidents inside the bar. I know that doesn't

         20  prevent it from being dragged into the suit, but

         21  eventually they would not be liable.

         22                 You mentioned that the State Liquor

         23  Authority issues the opinion, but it's the DAs that

         24  enforce it. But if the State Liquor Authority issues

         25  an opinion saying it's legal, that's binding on the
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          2  DAs in that they have to prove the crime was

          3  knowingly committed, and you can't knowingly commit

          4  a crime if you have an opinion that says you're not

          5  committing a crime.

          6                 Let me again briefly change gear here

          7  and take a vote on these issues that are before us.

          8                 I first want to vote on Resolution

          9  810. Again, we heard testimony on this bill. It

         10  authorizes Congress, well, it calls on Congress to

         11  reauthorize the assault weapons ban. That's

         12  sponsored by myself and many others on this

         13  Committee.

         14                 Again, let me state, I do own a rifle

         15  and I support the right of law-abiding citizens to

         16  own rifles. However, if you want to own a machine

         17  gun, join the Army.

         18                 So, we're going to vote on that one

         19  first.

         20                 You know, I'm told because there is

         21  no disagreement on this, we will vote on all three.

         22                 The second one is Intro., Reso 811,

         23  which urges Congress to reject two bills that seek

         24  to grant the gun industry special protection against

         25  legal action.
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          2                 And the third one, which I hadn't

          3  mentioned before, but we're going to also be voting

          4  on Resolution 1125, which calls on Albany to

          5  increase the penalties for bank robbery, from the

          6  current E or D felony, to a minimal C felony, which

          7  again will result in mandatory jail time for bank

          8  robbery.

          9                 As we heard on October 14th, New York

         10  NYPD, New York Bankers Association, various private

         11  security organizations, pretty much everyone will

         12  testify in support of this bill. We all think it's a

         13  good way to decrease the number of bank robberies.

         14                 So, we'll take a vote on all three of

         15  those resolutions now, and I would be the first.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         17  Vallone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm proud to

         19  vote aye on all three.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye on all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Dilan.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

          7  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

          8  abstentions, all three items are adopted.

          9                 Council Members, please sign the

         10  Committee reports.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         12  I'll hold that vote open for the rest of the

         13  members, should they show up.

         14                 We'll move now to Council Member

         15  Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 Chief, you said in this bill where if

         19  there is, I guess it's the first bill that we were

         20  talking about, 395, that you are in support of it,

         21  but I'm just concerned, what happens to the bar

         22  owner or to someone else that's a manager there, and

         23  the recommendations that you make really require the

         24  consent of the landlord? Because most of these

         25  places are not owned by the people that are running
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          2  them. So what happens in that event where you've

          3  made recommendations, and they're not able to get

          4  that done because the landlord refuses to let them

          5  make those changes to the building?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: The detail or

          7  process, I mean those details still have to be

          8  worked out, and it's our recommendation in the

          9  testimony that there would be a review process prior

         10  to the enforcement.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I see you

         12  wanted to put that in there. So, that would include

         13  that concern?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: That concern and

         15  any other concern.

         16                 But, again, the details of what the

         17  process of review, that would have to be worked out

         18  between the Police Department and this Committee.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Now, you know,

         20  I'm not an attorney, so with due respect to the

         21  Chair and my colleague, who introduced the bill, I'm

         22  not going to try to beat that one. I don't know the

         23  law per se, but it seems to me that if you're in

         24  support of 395, that -- which I think is a good

         25  idea, but doesn't that open the door of liability
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          2  for the City if we make recommendations to places

          3  about how to better secure it, and   nevertheless

          4  something happens inside of there? Don't we then

          5  have a considerable amount of liability as the City?

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Again, I'll pass

          7  that to Counsel.

          8                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DEEPFNER: I think, Councilman, that was one of the

         10  issues we raised in our testimony, that we don't

         11  want this to become a new avenue for liability for

         12  the City, and we would explore with the Council ways

         13  in which that could be achieved.

         14                 I'm not really quite sure how we

         15  would be able to do that, but certainly I think it's

         16  an issue that would need to be addressed.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So you are in

         18  support of this bill, but you are concerned about

         19  the liability issues.

         20                 It would seem to me that we might be

         21  able in the other bill to find a way to relieve

         22  ourselves of the liability issues and still allow an

         23  off-duty officer to be outside of these

         24  establishments that the laws that this resolution or

         25  this intro is requesting.
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          2                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  DEEPFNER: The other bill is different because there

          4  is already a state law on the issue. I'm not sure --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I guess what I

          6  heard you say is even if the State law were changed,

          7  you would still not be in support of it.

          8                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DEEPFNER: Correct. As a matter of policy we do not

         10  believe that it would be a wise idea because of the

         11  position that it puts police officers in.

         12                 Liability, as well as other reasons,

         13  as I mentioned the fact that police officers are

         14  also engaged in enforcement of criminal and

         15  administrative violations at these places.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do we review the

         17  licenses of people that operate these nightclubs? It

         18  seems to me that they move around, the nightclubs

         19  tend to move around quite a bit, and look to see if

         20  there's been violent activity at these clubs. So

         21  maybe this is a question for DCA, they probably are

         22  the ones who do the licensing.

         23                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DEEPFNER: SDSLA does the licensing if they're going

         25  to serve alcohol. DCA, you're correct, would issue a
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          2  cabaret license for them, if they're a cabaret.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          5  Council member. And let me say we share your

          6  concerns about the potential conflicts and the

          7  position the police officers are in. They're

          8  legitimate concerns. We hope they're dealt with by

          9  this bill and by the paid detail unit itself, by

         10  ensuring that officers from the precincts are not

         11  allowed to work locally and they're rotated

         12  constantly so that none of these conflicts can

         13  occur.

         14                 But as you say, they still will be

         15  potential conflicts, but they have to be weighed

         16  against the potential benefits of having uniformed

         17  police officers on the streets, and the benefit of

         18  diffusing these violent situations before they

         19  occur.

         20                 Now we'll go over to Council Member

         21  Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Chief, thank you

         23  very much for coming and testifying today.

         24                 I just really want to clarify a few

         25  things. Can you tell us for the record what type of
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          2  businesses are in the paid detail program? Paid

          3  detail program.

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: There are over

          5  200 companies, corporations that are involved with

          6  it. They could be department stores, certainly it

          7  comes to mind as Yankee Stadium, and, you know,

          8  generally private corporations such as that. Office

          9  buildings.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And what happens

         11  is the businesses go to the New York City Police

         12  Department, they request a paid detailed program,

         13  and then it's paid for, the overtime is paid for by

         14  the company?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Yes, the salary

         16  of the officer is -- for the officers, the time that

         17  is put in, the actual check is cut to the paid

         18  detail program, and the paid detail program issues

         19  the check to the officer that worked that particular

         20  detail.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How do you deal

         22  with the liability issues on those organizations, in

         23  those organizations that have the request in?

         24                 They've got to be liability issues,

         25  right? If you're at Yankee Stadium the officer could
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          2  get hurt.  If you're in a department store and

          3  someone is shoplifting, the officer could get hurt.

          4  I mean, I'm just curious as to what are the legal,

          5  and maybe it's better for the Counsel, what is the

          6  legal difference between the liability that it would

          7  incur at those places, as opposed to these bills

          8  we're talking about today?

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DEEPFNER: One of the things the detailed program

         11  does in its assessment of whether a company should

         12  be allowed to participate, is it determines whether

         13  they have adequate insurance coverage, in the event

         14  there is a lawsuit so that they are not dealing with

         15  a company that's potentially judgment proof, it

         16  certainly is also an issue with some of these other

         17  corporations, but for the most part they're, you

         18  know, major well-funded corporations, and we do, as

         19  I said, require that they have insurance.

         20                 If I could just clarify a point that

         21  you made earlier? The police officers aren't paid

         22  overtime by the City for working at these stores and

         23  other locations. They're paid directly by the

         24  stores. So, while they're working there they're not

         25  really working as employees of the City, they're
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          2  working more as employees of the stores.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And, again, it's

          4  really for clarification for my benefit: All these

          5  companies, over 200 companies that do the paid

          6  detail program, what you're saying is they all have

          7  insurance for the officer?

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I think we

          9  require the paid detail program requires a minimum

         10  of   a million dollars liability insurance.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, let me ask

         12  a question then. Is it the insurance issue that's

         13  the problem, or is it the type of establishment?

         14  What if we required the same insurance? I don't know

         15  if this is possible or not, and I'm not sure that

         16  the bill -- what if we required the same insurance

         17  of these clubs or the bars that we require of the

         18  other 200 businesses?

         19                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  DEEPFNER: I think it's not just the liability issue

         21  at the bars and cabarets. Obviously, that's one of

         22  the concerns, but there's also the conflict of

         23  interest issue because the officer, as I said, also

         24  enforces laws against those types of businesses,

         25  which is not really the case with the other types of
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          2  businesses.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So we're going

          4  back to the SLA?

          5                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  DEEPFNER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

          8                 Can you help me distinguish between

          9  Yankee Stadium and Shea Stadium and Madison Square

         10  Garden during games that have paid details, I guess,

         11  and they serve alcohol --

         12                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DEEPFNER: They serve alcohol, but the business that

         14  they're engaged in is not the sale of alcohol, it's

         15  kind of tangential to the baseball or hockey or

         16  basketball or whatever it is that's going on at the

         17  time.

         18                 In addition, the Yankees don't sell

         19  the alcohol, it's the concessionaire that sells it

         20  in the stadium. And, again, it's a very small part

         21  of the overall business that's going on, not the

         22  central part as it would be with the bar.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You brought up

         24  the point before that the cops will be around and

         25  they see under-aged drinking and all of that, and
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          2  they're under an obligation to report it.

          3                 But the bar owner would have to

          4  request the police officer to be there, right? So,

          5  don't they sort of take on that liability

          6  themselves? They take that risk, right?

          7                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DEEPFNER: The bar takes the risk?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They have to

         10  take the risk, right? Because if the cops are under

         11  the obligation, and they should be under the

         12  obligation, I think, of reporting underaged drinking

         13  and all that, the bar owner has to request that paid

         14  detail. So they pretty much take that risk on

         15  themselves of knowing that the police officers would

         16  have to make that report.

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Well, there's

         18  that issue, and there's also the issue of anybody

         19  running out to the officer on the beat, if you will,

         20  and describing some kind of activity that's taking

         21  place inside the bar.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, you pretty

         23  much have that problem wherever they have their

         24  detail.

         25                 I mean, it would pretty much, whether
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          2  it be Yankee Stadium or Shea Stadium and there is

          3  underaged drinking, I mean it would be a problem no

          4  matter where the police officers work?

          5                 You know, forgive me, I'm trying to

          6  really just distinguish why this issue is such a

          7  large issue. Because I've got to tell you something,

          8  when I got the phone call asking about this bill, I,

          9  number one, didn't realize how many paid details

         10  there were in the City New York, and perhaps I

         11  should have realized that, but the second one is, I

         12  couldn't figure out how to distinguish between a bar

         13  and the sports programs, like Yankee Stadium and all

         14  that. And so I'm really just trying to distinguish

         15  it for the record, and trying to figure that out.

         16  So, I'm looking for help.

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Well, I think

         18  Counsel has attempted to give some clarification to

         19  that. To the extent that the alcohol sales in Yankee

         20  Stadium is tangential and you have the focus of

         21  alcohol as the central part of business in a bar,

         22  and when you're talking about problematic

         23  circumstances in bars, that the likelihood of

         24  involvement of an officer outside, inside the

         25  establishment, is much greater from my perspective
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          2  than it would be at a sporting event.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, I

          4  have two very quick questions.

          5                 Number one, is there paid details

          6  without uniform?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, if they're

          9  on paid detail, they're in uniform.

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: They're in

         11  uniform.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Are police

         13  officers allowed to work, and I don't know the

         14  answer to this, are police officers allowed to work

         15  off-duty and earn part-time salary if they wanted

         16  out of uniform?

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Yes. That would

         18  be a process of review. They have to make

         19  application to the Department and be given approval

         20  for where they're working and what are their

         21  specific responsibilities of where they're working,

         22  what are the specific hours that they're going to be

         23  working, and the review process being is there any

         24  conflict.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Are there police
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          2  officers that do it for bars?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          5                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  DEEPFNER: Council member, if I could make one other

          7  point about the off-duty employment of police

          8  officers. There are quite a few restrictions on the

          9  types of businesses they're allowed to work for.

         10  Most of them are aimed at preventing the type of

         11  conflict of interest that we believe exists with

         12  bars. For example, it can't be process servers, they

         13  can't be locksmiths, things that would put them into

         14  what we believe to be a potentially conflict

         15  situation.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I thank you for

         17  your time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Council Member.

         20                 And I think it's a great point, the

         21  type of conflict that would occur at a bar such as,

         22  or a potential liability situation which would be a

         23  drunk, rowdy patron, you've got to assume it occurs

         24  more often at Yankee and Shea Stadium than it would

         25  at the small amount of bars that would probably
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          2  avail themselves of this opportunity, because it

          3  would be an expensive proposition to be hiring

          4  police officers to work outside your bars.

          5                 But to follow up on Council Member

          6  Katz' question, it exists I believe you said in 200

          7  places, over 200 places already, what liability

          8  situations have you faced already, and do you have

          9  any figures on that?

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: We don't. I don't

         11  know if we faced any liability circumstances.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a good

         13  thing then, that the City has not been drawn into

         14  any lawsuit based on the paid detail bill at this

         15  point?

         16                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DEEPFNER: I don't know if we know that for a fact at

         18  this point.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will be

         20  asking to get that information in the future then.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 Council Member Gentile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Just to follow-up on this thought of
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          2  the paid detail program. From what I'm hearing is

          3  that those who are in this program, this paid detail

          4  program, they're in a slightly different role in

          5  that you, yourself, had said that they're are

          6  actually employees of the business. I think you said

          7  that in response to Council Member Katz' question,

          8  that when they're in this program they're actually

          9  employees of the business that are paying into this

         10  program.

         11                 So, doesn't that put that police

         12  officer in a slightly different role that might

         13  resolve some of these conflict of interest problems

         14  in that if there is a violation of an SLA

         15  regulation, or if there is some type of

         16  administrative code violation, you still have the

         17  local precinct, you still have the police officers

         18  who are on duty in the local precinct, and doing

         19  spotchecks, doing raids, doing whatever is necessary

         20  to enforce the SLA regulations or any other

         21  administrative code regulation. And the officer

         22  that's in the paid detail program, if we were to

         23  allow this in bars, is really there for that purpose

         24  of security, and because he's in a slightly

         25  different role than his colleague who is a member of
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          2  the local precinct, i.e., he's an employee of the

          3  business for that period of time, isn't that putting

          4  him in a different role, and maybe resolving some of

          5  these conflicts of interest you see at these

          6  locations?

          7                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DEEPFNER: I don't think it completely resolves the

          9  conflict. And if I said employee previously, I'm not

         10  sure that was the correct word, they're paid by the

         11  business directly, they're not paid by the Police

         12  Department, but they're not treated as an employee

         13  for tax purposes in that they withhold taxes and

         14  Social Security and all of those other things.

         15  That's up to the officer when he reports his income

         16  tax to resolve.

         17                 I don't think that the officer,

         18  though, could simply pass off the violations of law

         19  he might observe to the local precincts, and the

         20  fact that they're there, and that puts them in a

         21  much better position to make those observations, for

         22  somebody who is actually paying them to be there.

         23  So, I don't think it solves the conflict.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: There's another

         25  component of this, is that any action that the
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          2  officer would take, would immediately put that

          3  officer on City time. Any arrest situations, he can

          4  -- reverts back to being on-duty New York City

          5  police officer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now, how is

          7  that different than -- well, in other businesses I

          8  know you don't particularly regulate those

          9  businesses, but if you see a clear violation of a

         10  safety code or a health code in a Department store

         11  or some other location; is it incumbent upon the

         12  police officer to take action at that point, if

         13  they're part of this paid program?

         14                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  DEEPFNER: We wouldn't enforce health and safety

         16  codes in department stores as we would enforce

         17  violations of the alcoholic beverage control law in

         18  a restaurant or a bar. Health and safety I think

         19  would be -- I'm not sure which violation you would

         20  be referring to, but it's not something that we

         21  normally would be in a position to take action on.

         22  It might be a Fire Department or a Buildings

         23  Department type action, but that's not typically the

         24  kind of thing we would do. We do enforcement in

         25  bars.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Would it be

          3  incumbent upon that police officer to notify the

          4  Fire Department or notify the Health Department, or

          5  notify some responsible agency if they noticed or

          6  saw some violation? And wouldn't that in itself put

          7  them in the same situation you're saying they would

          8  be in in a bar situation?

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DEEPFNER: I'm not sure we do the kind of training

         11  that would be needed for an officer to recognize a

         12  health or a safety violation, that would be

         13  something the Fire Department of the Buildings

         14  Department would enforce.

         15                 There might be, I just can't think of

         16  one off the top of my head that we would say, oh,

         17  yeah, that's got to be reported.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, let's

         19  say hypothetically there is one, and the police

         20  officer recognizes that, would it be incumbent upon

         21  that police officer in that situation, outside of a

         22  bar situation, employed at a stadium or employed at

         23  a department store, would it be incumbent upon that

         24  police officer to notify a responsible agency?

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: I don't know,
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          2  quite frankly, I don't know if that's been explored.

          3  We certainly don't have -- that's not an issue

          4  that's ever come up in the types of jobs that

          5  they're currently doing.

          6                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  DEEPFNER: I think it would just happen much more

          8  often in a bar or a restaurant that we might observe

          9  a violation that we would normally be taking action

         10  against than it would in a department store or other

         11  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Or let me ask

         13  you this: As a matter of policy would you expect

         14  them to make such a notification?

         15                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  DEEPFNER: I'm not sure that we have a policy that

         17  addresses that issue.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And yet,

         19  because you have direct enforcement over the bars,

         20  you do not make -- you cannot see a difference in

         21  the fact that the police officer in that situation

         22  is there for one purpose and that security being

         23  paid, different from anybody else, any other police

         24  officer in that area, from the local precinct?

         25                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  DEEPFNER: I don't think it's a very different role

          3  than what they normally would be doing as police

          4  officers, because they're being hired in uniform

          5  with the expectation they will act as police

          6  officers when there's a violation of the law. Not

          7  that they will simply call 9-11 or you know, hope

          8  that the local precincts will be around to assist

          9  them. They're there, the uniform is there for a

         10  reason, and it's to act as New York City police

         11  officers when that becomes appropriate. And as the

         12  Chief just mentioned, if an arrest is made, the

         13  officer is now on City time, on overtime, they're no

         14  longer being paid by the establishment that hired

         15  them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now, there

         17  are some other jurisdictions that employ this

         18  program, and I believe outside of bars, Washington,

         19  D.C., and I believe Philadelphia. Has any

         20  investigation, any review been done of their

         21  procedures and how that's performed?

         22                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  DEEPFNER: I'm not personally familiar with how those

         24  programs work in some of the other cities. I can

         25  tell you that I was involved in the creation of a
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          2  paid detail program as it exists here, and many of

          3  the issues that we're discussing today were very

          4  carefully looked at, liability, what happens if an

          5  arrest is made, what kinds of places will we allow

          6  people to work at, you know, what are their duties

          7  and responsibilities when they're working for paid

          8  detail programs. We did give it a very careful and

          9  hard look and came up with what we have right now,

         10  but I'm not personally familiar with what happened

         11  in some of the other cities.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, I would

         13  suggest that maybe we look at some of those

         14  jurisdictions because I believe they have worked out

         15  those issues, particularly about bars too.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before I get to

         18  the last set of questions from David Yassky, for

         19  planning purposes, after this panel, we're only

         20  going to have one more panel which will consist of

         21  the nightlife association and the community board

         22  chair, I believe, and then we will be done.

         23                 So, Council Member Yassky.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

         25  you so much. I just have one follow-up question,
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          2  after hearing all the back and forth.

          3                 I've heard a lot of reasons from the

          4  Police Department to be concerned about this, but

          5  none of them relate to public safety. Here is my

          6  question: If there were a bar or a nightclub where

          7  you had frequently people leaving at two in the

          8  morning, maybe having drunk some alcohol, and

          9  there's reason to be worried that there might be an

         10  incident once in awhile, would it be good for public

         11  safety, would it promote public safety to have a

         12  trained police officer in uniform, outside that

         13  establishment, to make sure everything stays calm,

         14  is that good for public safety?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Currently, we

         16  currently look at review relative to our COMSTAT

         17  process, look at problematic areas, typically

         18  problematic clubs, and we deploy accordingly,

         19  through whether we may have specific cabaret cars,

         20  checkpoints set up, a number of different protocols

         21  set up in the event something should take place. So,

         22  to the extent that we have on-duty full-time police

         23  officers addressing those conditions, yes, that

         24  lends itself to public safety. But not at the

         25  expense of problematic areas which we've previously
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          2  discussed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Indeed. And

          4  you have limited resources. Let me just ask again. I

          5  understand you use your COMSTAT and other things to

          6  deploy where you think it's most effective, but

          7  let's take an establishment that you do not

          8  currently cover, because you do not have resources

          9  to be everywhere, does it promote public safety to

         10  have a trained police officer in uniform outside of

         11  that establishment who would not be there otherwise

         12  because you don't have enough people to be

         13  everywhere you want; would that promote public

         14  safety?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF YOUNG: Again, Council

         16  Member, I don't want to spar with you. To the extent

         17  that you have a uniformed police officer standing

         18  anywhere promotes public safety.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         22  Council Member.

         23                 Let me thank the witnesses for coming

         24  down, Commissioner Deepfner, and Deputy Chief Young.

         25  Your testimony has been extremely helpful and we
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          2  look forward to working with you on both of these

          3  bills to craft them in a way that, at least, one,

          4  you won't find them so objectionable, and the other

          5  one you'll like even more.

          6                 Thank you for coming down today, and

          7  we look forward to working with you.

          8                 And our next and last panel will

          9  consist of three members of the Nightlife

         10  Association. Robert Bookman, who is the Counsel.

         11  David Rabin, who I believe is president, but I'm

         12  going out on a limb there, and Andrew Rashy, okay?

         13  To be joined by Vikki Barbero from Community Board

         14  5.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman, members of the Committee. Thank you. My

         17  name is Robert Bookman. I am Counsel to the New York

         18  Nightlife Association.

         19                 Briefly, the order in which we would

         20  like to testify and answer your questions when we're

         21  all done, because it's kind of like a package deal,

         22  if you will, we'll have Ms. Barbero testify first,

         23  because she's on a tight time schedule with the

         24  community board, and it was nice of her to come here

         25  today, then Andrew Rashy, who is the founder of the
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          2  Nightlife Association and originally suggested this

          3  idea, would like to give you a little overview of

          4  how we got here. Mr. Rabin, who is our current

          5  president, will testify; and I'll address some of

          6  the legal issues which came up in the Police

          7  Department testimony.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MS. BARBERO: Good morning. My name is

         10  Vikki Barberbo. I'm the Chair of Community Board 5's

         11  Public Safety Quality of Life Committee, and I've

         12  been involved in quality of life issues for ten

         13  years on the Board.

         14                 Just so you understand the areas that

         15  we encompass, our boundaries are from 14th to 59th

         16  Streets and from Lexington to Eighth Avenues.

         17                 We have the largest mix of residents

         18  and businesses, in the most condensed areas of bars,

         19  lounges and clubs, within residential communities.

         20                 We average about 60 requests for new

         21  renewals and transfers of liquor licenses. Last

         22  month we had a record-breaking 97 requests.

         23                 Because of this concentrated

         24  combination, we have been extremely careful to

         25  represent the entire community.
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          2                 That is not only the residents and

          3  their concerns, but the businesses as well.

          4                 The overwhelming majority of

          5  complaints that we receive regarding nightlife

          6  establishments are about activities that take place

          7  on the public sidewalks and the streets directly

          8  outside and in the vicinity of clubs and lounges.

          9                 We have seen a marked rise in the

         10  number of complaints since last spring when the

         11  smoking ban was enacted.

         12                 We also have seen that the ability of

         13  the nightlife owners to control negative activities

         14  on the sidewalks is at best limited, especially when

         15  the complaint of activity is not directly in front

         16  of the establishment but further down the block.

         17                 In an effort to deal with these

         18  problems, many owners have increased their security

         19  outside. However, the presence of a uniformed police

         20  officer, we believe, will have a much greater

         21  effect.

         22                 New York City already has established

         23  an off-duty paid detail unit to have private

         24  entities pay for off-duty police officers to

         25  mitigate the negative aspects of illegal business.
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          2                 As you know, it does not presently

          3  include nightlife establishments with liquor

          4  licenses.

          5                 We understand that cities such as

          6  Boston, Houston and Miami have had paid detail units

          7  that include liquor license establishments to be

          8  effective.

          9                 We also understand that our nightlife

         10  establishment owners welcome the opportunity to find

         11  a solution for ensuring that their street is not

         12  negatively impacted by their patrons, and will bear

         13  the cost of such an expansion of New York City's

         14  paid detail unit.

         15                 Both property owners and residents of

         16  these communities will realize the benefits.

         17                 To this end, Community Board 5 passed

         18  a resolution in September of this year, supporting

         19  the expansion of New York City's paid detail unit

         20  program to include nightlife establishments with

         21  liquor licenses on the following conditions. That

         22  the off-duty officers be paid and supervised

         23  directly by the PDU, and that the establishment be

         24  billed by the PDU, that all assignments of officers

         25  be done directly by the PDU, and that the officers
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          2  be rotated on a regular basis, that the officers

          3  only be permitted to work on the street, not inside

          4  the establishments, and that multiple small

          5  establishments on the same block be permitted to

          6  pool resources to share a PDU officer.

          7                 Community Board 5 urges you to

          8  support this expansion of New York City's paid

          9  detail unit program and thanks you for your

         10  attention to the matter.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We'll

         12  hold off on questioning until the entire panel is

         13  done.

         14                 MR. RASHY: Good morning. My name is

         15  Andrew Rashy, and I'm proud to be the founder of the

         16  New York Nightlife Association.

         17                 I came into the nightclub business by

         18  accident. I was running a business that gave real

         19  estate advice to non-profit organizations and one of

         20  my clients owned an old theater on 15th Street they

         21  didn't know what to do with, and it seemed since it

         22  had a flat floor that it might work for concerts,

         23  and, so, before we knew it, we were starting to put

         24  on concerts there, and soon it became known, and if

         25  you haven't heard of it, a very well known music
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          2  venue called "Irving Plaza."

          3                 I opened this venue with my clients

          4  who were the liquor licensees at the time, with the

          5  hopes of creating a business that would not only

          6  provide a cultural resource, but would also add to

          7  the fabric of the community.

          8                 If you remember at the time a few

          9  years ago, there were a lot of problems with clubs

         10  here in New York known as the Limelight and the

         11  Tunnel, which are owned by Peter Gashen, and the

         12  investigations of Mr. Gashen by the City, and around

         13  the same time that I was running Irving Plaza, I was

         14  also very active in the local community, the 14th

         15  Street Business Improvement District, and I was

         16  shocked to discover that whenever I was talking to a

         17  police officer or talking to the people in the

         18  community about the fact that I owned a nightclub,

         19  that somehow I was viewed as a potential problem. I

         20  didn't understand why.

         21                 So, I realized that there was no

         22  association for this, for our industry, and

         23  organized an effort to try to put together a group

         24  of club owners to present our case to the City that

         25  we were running legitimate businesses and that we
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          2  weren't all like the newspapers and the City viewed

          3  us, hoodlums or drug dealers.

          4                 Anyway, in the process of running a

          5  club, and starting the Nightlife Association, we

          6  started looking for solutions, and one of the

          7  biggest opportunities we saw, and we agreed with

          8  what Vikki just said earlier, was that most of the

          9  problems associated with nightclubs and the

         10  activities are as a result of what occurs on the

         11  street, not as a result of what occurs inside the

         12  club.

         13                 So, we looked for some way to

         14  mitigate that problem. If you go to Madison Square

         15  Garden or Yankee Stadium and you see the cops, it's

         16  true that Yankee Stadium and Madison Square Garden

         17  hire off-duty police officers, but what you also

         18  maybe don't realize is that many of the cops that

         19  are actually working outside Madison Square Garden

         20  are actually paid for by the City as part of a

         21  detail that shows up there whenever there's a hockey

         22  game or a concert or any other large event.

         23                 In the flat iron district (phonetic)

         24  where Community Board 5 is located, on a Friday and

         25  Saturday night, the same 15 to 20,000 people that
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          2  would appear at Madison Square Garden show up

          3  weekly, and if you were a club owner and you called

          4  the 13th Precinct and asked for a police officer to

          5  help you with a large crowd or with cabs double

          6  parked or with other kinds of noise, you would be

          7  given a disorderly premise violation.

          8                 It seems strange to me that if 15,000

          9  people come to Madison Square Garden and can get 200

         10  cops paid for by the City to come and move traffic

         11  and to take care of the peace, why shouldn't the

         12  flat iron district be able to do the same thing?

         13                 Well, since we were unable to create

         14  a dialogue with the City in order to create the same

         15  thing, we then offered the idea of paying for cops

         16  under the paid detail unit.

         17                 We wrote letters to the Police

         18  Department, we requested meetings and in fact some

         19  of the members on this panel with myself and some

         20  other club owners requested a meeting with then

         21  Deputy Mayor Rudy Washington who insisted that

         22  before he would meet with us that we give them our

         23  social security number so they could do background

         24  checks on us before they would actually meet with

         25  us.
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          2                 We presented the idea then to the

          3  Police Department, and the Police Department at that

          4  time rejected us, for very similar reasons to the

          5  reasons you heard today.

          6                 The reason I'm telling you this sort

          7  of long story is because the attitude of the Police

          8  Department which was exhibited today, of somewhat of

          9  a negative perspective, seems to me to be

         10  symptomatic of the problem with understanding what

         11  the potential of nightlife establishments are in

         12  terms of providing economic value to the City of New

         13  York, and you'll hear a little bit about that in a

         14  minute.

         15                 What I and others like me, who

         16  consider ourselves to be legitimate business owners

         17  were trying to achieve, was to establish a dialogue

         18  with not only our local communities, but also with

         19  the Police Department to create a safe environment

         20  for nightclubs to operate, for people to be

         21  entertained, for tourists to come, and for the

         22  City's vibrancy to continue.

         23                 I strongly believe that if other

         24  cities have been able to achieve this by allowing

         25  police officers to work off duty in front of
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          2  establishments, that there's no reason that the

          3  City, which is known as the City that never sleeps

          4  and the greatest City for entertainment in the

          5  world, shouldn't be able to do the same thing.

          6                 Therefore, I strongly urge you to

          7  consider this bill and mitigate these minor

          8  objections which the Police Department has offered

          9  in such a way as to allow this bill to go forward.

         10                 And let me just simply add that I

         11  believe that if this bill was to pass, that the

         12  nightlife industry would, and the City culturally

         13  would achieve a renaissance of not only peace and

         14  quiet on the streets of New York late at night, but

         15  also culturally and economically.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

         17  hate to say this but we ran your background checks

         18  too, and you all passed, except David.

         19                 MR. RASHY: That's why he doesn't go

         20  anywhere without me.

         21                 MR. RABIN: That said, my name is

         22  David Rabin. I'm pleased to appear in favor of

         23  legislation before the City Council. I spent a lot

         24  of time last fall against some legislation here.

         25                 I am currently the president of the
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          2  New York Nightlife Association and am proud to have

          3  followed Andrew who started this initiative six

          4  years ago, and we tried to -- we've been trying to

          5  keep it going.

          6                 I believe that what we have before us

          7  today is a very important parcel solution. It is not

          8  a cure-all, but a tremendous first step to alleviate

          9  a problem that both you and the industry we

         10  represent face. The problem is preserving nightlife

         11  as a vibrant and crucial economic engine for New

         12  York at a time that it needs it most, and also to

         13  ensure that nightlife can co-exist within the

         14  neighborhoods within which it's situated.

         15                 New York Nightlife Association

         16  represents over 150 bars, nightclubs and lounges in

         17  New York. Our updated economic impact survey, which

         18  will be released in the next few weeks, will show

         19  that we are a multi-billion dollar industry, in

         20  terms of our economic impact on New York.

         21                 Please let me repeat that: A

         22  multi-billion dollar industry. We employ tens of

         23  thousands of people and we have over 65 million

         24  entrances per year to our establishments.

         25                 One would think that an industry that
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          2  generates so much income and so much tourism for New

          3  York, and factors into the decision-making process

          4  of so many young talented people when they choose

          5  where to live, would be an industry that would be

          6  embraced by City government. However, the City

          7  government has not taken that position, as you can

          8  see, from today.

          9                 We've been asking for the expansion

         10  of the paid detail unit for over six years where our

         11  calls have fallen on deaf ears, until this year,

         12  partly due to the tragic death of a bouncer on the

         13  lower east side who was killed while enforcing the

         14  smoking ban.

         15                 We thank the Council for taking this

         16  issue up today. We do believe that the City

         17  government should work to nurture and work together

         18  with our industry as it does with Broadway or with

         19  all the sports teams here in New York City.

         20                 I doubt that Charles -- and I'm still

         21  puzzled by the position taken by the Police a little

         22  while ago -- I doubt that either Charles Dolan or

         23  George Steinbrenner would consider alcohol sales

         24  purely tangential to their business. The truth is

         25  that the Administration continues to see sports as
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          2  an important part of this City, but they refuse to

          3  recognize nightlife impact on this City in a

          4  positive manner.

          5                 We believe that the City should

          6  support nightlife and arenas by offering the police

          7  in heavily trafficked areas. But they don't. So, we

          8  came to the City, as Andrew said, and offered to pay

          9  for it ourselves, via the paid detail unit.

         10                 We accept our needs to be regulated,

         11  and we encourage reasonable and intelligent

         12  enforcement of the laws to protect society from

         13  those among us who deliberately flout the rules and

         14  make no effort to improve their operating standards

         15  or to work with their communities.

         16                 The paid detail unit is not a

         17  panacea. It is not a substitute for our own

         18  security. It is not the answer to all that is wrong

         19  in the world, and it is not meant to be. It is meant

         20  as a voluntary first step asked for by us to make

         21  things better.

         22                 While not speaking in my capacity as

         23  a member of Community Board 5, I believe any of you

         24  with any community board experience know that 90

         25  percent of the problems relating to nightlife,
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          2  particularly those in residential areas, relate to

          3  external noise, caused by guests that arrive, leave,

          4  or in many cases are not even admitted.

          5                 At Lotus, which I co-own, we have a

          6  team of up to ten licensed security personnel on

          7  busy nights. Internally we rarely, if ever, have

          8  issues. But externally, even with three security and

          9  a doorman, we still face rather intractable

         10  problems.

         11                 If we choose not to admit a group and

         12  ask them not to loiter in front of Lotus, their

         13  response, as you can imagine, is quite often not

         14  very pleasant.

         15                 In very colorful language, they tell

         16  us we're not the cops, we don't have to be quiet, we

         17  don't own the sidewalk, they don't have to go

         18  anywhere. And thus, we're hamstrung. We can't touch

         19  them, and we can't call the police because

         20  traditionally if we do call the police in that

         21  situation, we're handed a ticket for disorderly

         22  premise.

         23                 Again, I would doubt that George

         24  Steinbrenner or Charles Dolan receive a similar

         25  ticket when the police have to interfere and help a
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          2  problem outside of Madison Square Garden or Yankee

          3  Stadium.

          4                 We believe that an officer patrolling

          5  the area immediately in front of our venues would

          6  immediately reduce the number of problems in our

          7  area - yelling, rowdy behavior, public drinking and

          8  urination, taxi horns, leafletting, are just some of

          9  the issues that virtually would disappear with a

         10  police presence.

         11                 Even the vastly increased incidental

         12  street noise directly resulting from the smoking

         13  ban, and the masses of smokers outside would be more

         14  subject to control with the presence of an officer.

         15                 And although we are vigilant about

         16  drug sales and use, it can still be a lurking

         17  problem in our business.

         18                 What drug dealer is going to parade

         19  up to a nightclub door for admissions, or try to

         20  work a crowd milling about outside if he has to

         21  march right before a uniformed police officer?

         22                 Expanding the PDU is a win/win for

         23  New York City. Officers who want and need more work

         24  will get it, responsible nightlife venues will pay

         25  for the cost, communities will be quieter and safer.
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          2  The PBA, which is unfortunately not here today, has

          3  come out strongly in support of this measure. And

          4  for those who will raise the issue of potential

          5  police corruption, I would ask them are they willing

          6  to tell New York's finest that they are more likely

          7  to be corrupt than the police in Boston, or in

          8  Miami, or in any of the other cities that are using

          9  the paid detail unit.

         10                 Lotus alone employs over 115 people,

         11  65 percent of whom are from various minority groups.

         12                 Prices like Lotus are crucial to the

         13  image and economic well-being of New York.

         14                 We not only employ thousands of

         15  people, we are a crucial part of the decision

         16  process of millions of tourists who choose to visit

         17  New York over other cities, despite the fact that

         18  New York's own tourism bureau pretends that we do

         19  not exist.

         20                 Our members want to be good

         21  neighbors, want to keep community relations at their

         22  best. We have invested a lot of money in our

         23  businesses and want them to last a long time.

         24                 On behalf of NYNA, I want to thank

         25  all the sponsors to this legislation for their
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          2  foresight, congratulate Councilman Vallone for

          3  holding today's hearings, and Councilman Yassky for

          4  introducing the initiative.

          5                 I hope this is a first step to

          6  recognition by certain parts of City government that

          7  nightlife, like all industries, have good and bad

          8  operators, and that for the health and prosperity of

          9  New York, it is in the interest of our City

         10  government to try in creative ways work with us and

         11  not against us.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you. I more have

         14  comments to a certain extent on some of the

         15  questions that I heard raised today.

         16                 As to the paid detail, Intro. 478-A,

         17  as to that bill, I just want to stress that we're

         18  not asking the Police Department to reinvent the

         19  wheel here. The paid detail unit has existed

         20  successfully and without incident to our knowledge

         21  and apparently without incident to their knowledge

         22  either for over five and a half years now.

         23                 That is a track record that they

         24  should be proud of, rather than trying to run away

         25  from, and it would seem to me that these issues of
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          2  conflict and liability would have been worked out

          3  and apparently have been worked out long ago, before

          4  the paid detail unit became as successful as it is,

          5  and it's expanding, because I did a FOIL request a

          6  couple of years ago, probably the only one ever

          7  responded to, possibly, it didn't have hundreds

          8  then. So, it was about a hundred clients then. So,

          9  it's a popular thing, it is increasing, as it should

         10  be, and the issues that they raised seemed to be

         11  more appropriately raised five and a half years ago

         12  when considering whether to create such a program in

         13  New York in the first place, not five and a half

         14  years later after all that success.

         15                 As to the argument concerning Section

         16  128 of the ABC law prohibiting paid detail units at

         17  establishments who sell liquor, frankly, this is

         18  simply an incorrect interpretation of the state law

         19  by a City agency.

         20                 The State law prohibits police

         21  officers, either directly or indirectly, in the

         22  interest in the manufacture or sale of alcoholic

         23  beverages.

         24                 Patrolling the street outside a

         25  liquor license establishment, pursuant to the
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          2  supervision of a paid detail unit program, simply

          3  did not rise to the level of having an interest in

          4  the sale or manufacture of alcohol.

          5                 Police officers in the PDU act as

          6  police officers, enforcing the laws and keeping the

          7  peace, not with the intent of what the law was, and

          8  the ABC law and the Liquor Authority itself has now,

          9  it appears to me, resolved this question once and

         10  for all by issuing an opinion stating there is no

         11  prohibition here, and the case cited in the bill, in

         12  the introduction, and also was cited in the Liquor

         13  Authority's Counsel's opinion letter today.  So,

         14  obviously, while Counsel to the Police Department

         15  felt that that case was not directly on point, the

         16  Liquor Authority Counsel seems to feel the case is

         17  directly on point, so you cite it correctly in your

         18  introduction.

         19                 I just find it somewhat shocking that

         20  a City agency is insisting on holding on to an

         21  opinion concerning an interpretation of a state law

         22  when that state agency's own counsel says we

         23  respectfully disagree with your interpretation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In their

         25  defense, let me just say that they just got that
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          2  before --

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Fair enough. We just got

          4  it ourselves.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: They didn't get

          6  to look at it before they testified.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: And perhaps they will

          8  reverse their opinion on the issue of preemption,

          9  which would certainly then leave us with the minor

         10  issues, if you will, that they raise, which can

         11  easily be addressed, many with the safety systems

         12  that they've already, to their credit, established

         13  in their own paid detail unit.

         14                 You've heard that a similar system

         15  exists in other cities, and that's correct. Most of

         16  the cities have some systems such as paid detail.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Which include

         18  working at bars?

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: Which include working

         20  outside of liquor license establishments,

         21  absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's happening

         23  in other major cities right now.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: It's happening in

         25  Boston, it's happening in Miami. I understand that
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          2  in South Beach in Miami you must hire a paid detail

          3  unit if you're open past a certain hour, because the

          4  police don't have enough police to put people

          5  outside of all these places. So, it's a requirement.

          6                 And in other cities the relationship

          7  is a lot more close, and we would consider it's

          8  potentially problematical in their programs in their

          9  programs than the existing paid detail unit program

         10  here. So I think they've already addressed a lot of

         11  the concerns, and all they need to do is ask their

         12  sister cities to see how it works there. They will

         13  see that we have the toughest, safest program to

         14  address issues of potential conflict.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mention in

         16  your comments that it not only exists in other

         17  cities, but it exists in New Rochelle?

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: I have two clients as we

         19  speak who I just confirmed with last week who have

         20  used clubs, have liquor licenses and they don't call

         21  it paid detail there and they don't have a separate

         22  unit, but they've used it for years. Every night

         23  that they know they're going to have a particularly

         24  busy night or a large crowd, they call the Police

         25  Department, the provide as many in uniform off-duty
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          2  police officers that are required, and they do pay

          3  them directly. The check doesn't go through the

          4  Police Departments, it's reported to the Police

          5  Department, but its handled there directly, and

          6  that's the same state law.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Obviously the

          8  distinction there is it's New York State.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Exactly.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And there's

         11  been, as far as you know, no illegality found there?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: No. No prosecutions that

         13  we're aware of. You know, it's disingenuous to argue

         14  that anybody would be prosecuted by a District

         15  Attorney, a police officer, pursuant to a statute

         16  passed by the City Council, you know, expanding a

         17  paid detail unit, this obviously would not happen.

         18                 Which raises the other issue, police

         19  officers enforce all types of laws, other than the

         20  ABC law. They are throughout the Administrative

         21  Code, either the primary or the secondary

         22  enforcement mechanism or the ability to enforce all

         23  types of safety laws, rules and regulation. You look

         24  at the list of paid detail clients ranging from

         25  banks, electronic laws, Kings Plaza in Brooklyn,
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          2  construction sites, police officers enforce all

          3  types of laws with these types of locations, yet

          4  there has seemed to be in five and a half years no

          5  conflict problems.

          6                 And Councilman Gentile, your

          7  cross-examination was excellent, I guess they just

          8  refused to say yes. Clearly you are correct that if

          9  there was a conflict there would be a conflict

         10  existing now, and it does not seem to be a problem.

         11                 I would also point out that unlike

         12  all these other types of businesses, with the ABC

         13  law, all violations, or potential violations, in

         14  fact, take place inside the premises. So, their fear

         15  is really not well founded, that a police officer

         16  outside walking up and down say Avenue A between

         17  Third and Fourth Street, would be seeing any

         18  violations of the ABC law that he would feel

         19  conflicted about because he's not inside, and so he

         20  wouldn't feel conflicted because he wouldn't be

         21  seeing any violations of the ABC law. What he will

         22  be seeing is people illegally double parked, people

         23  illegally consuming a sixpack of beer that they

         24  bought, you know, at a local store and couldn't get

         25  into a club, people illegally handing out flyers,
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          2  people being properly escorted outside of a club

          3  because of potential for disorderly premises inside

          4  who now will leave the area, who won't go to their

          5  cars, get a gun and come back and shoot each other

          6  because there will be a police officer there.

          7                 So, Councilman Yassky is right on

          8  point when he says the deterrent impact of a paid

          9  detail unit outside licensed premises is huge, and

         10  we just don't know how high the sky is here, but

         11  talking about a potential win/win situation, we have

         12  nothing to fear other than success by trying this,

         13  and if we do try it, I am convinced that your

         14  residents, your constituents will be happy, the

         15  Police Department will ultimately be happy, there

         16  will be a reduction in any of these incidents on the

         17  street, outside of places, and there wouldn't be a

         18  need for Intro. 395 if we had a paid detail unit,

         19  because most of the incidents that you hear about

         20  violence or guns or whatever, again, do not take

         21  place inside. They take place outside, after we have

         22  done our proper job by removing people from the

         23  premises.

         24                 Once we remove them from the

         25  premises, not much we can do anymore, and if there
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          2  was a paid detail unit person out there, we wouldn't

          3  have that problem, and you wouldn't have the need

          4  for 395 either, because these incidents wouldn't be

          5  taking place out on the streets.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

          7  happen to also believe that the benefits of the

          8  uniform on the street outweigh the conflicts.

          9                 I would like to address something

         10  that they brought up, and I guess let Mr. Rabin,

         11  since you're involved nightly in the operations of

         12  your establishment. The Police Department is

         13  concerned about something happening inside a bar

         14  that a uniformed officer outside a bar wouldn't be

         15  able to respond to, or in fact might have to respond

         16  to, put in a conflicting situation, such as a

         17  violent fight occurring inside a bar while the

         18  police officer stood outside.

         19                 And then you have some other maybe

         20  less serious concern, such as reporting under-age

         21  drinking that an officer might see.

         22                 How would you address those issues?

         23                 MR. RABIN: Well, I think Councilman

         24  Katz addressed it a little bit by saying this is a

         25  voluntary program, we believe that responsible
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          2  operations are going to welcome the paid detail and

          3  want them to be there and are thus aware that they

          4  may be facing issues of greater scrutiny by the

          5  police, and that's okay with them.

          6                 We're trying to be good neighbors. I

          7  don't think that any operator who would hire a paid

          8  detail officer would then parade, you know,

          9  18-year-old kids past that officer, to go in for

         10  drinking.

         11                 I also do think that, I'll relate

         12  back to what Rob just said, I think there's a much

         13  greater deterrent factor in place, if there's an

         14  officer out front. I doubt that people inside are

         15  going to be as likely to spark fights knowing that

         16  the police are right there, and I think also, you

         17  know right now we're in a strange position,

         18  Councilman, which is that unfortunately even when

         19  events occur that are not of our doing, and with the

         20  presence of security, we are very hesitant to call

         21  the police, because we have what we consider in our

         22  community a catch-22 situation, if we do try to

         23  avail ourselves of the police, and give them a call

         24  and say, look, we've got a problem, we need a hand

         25  here, very often they do come give us a hand, and
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          2  then there's a fine for disorderly premise.

          3                 I think having a closer working

          4  relationship with the police at any level would

          5  benefit everybody, the nightlife operators, the

          6  people who patronize these venues, and the community

          7  as a whole.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: I would also add that

          9  the Police Department, I don't know if you have a

         10  copy of it, but they do have a two-page -- not a

         11  formal regulation, they were never promulgated, but

         12  they are like guidelines or procedures for how the

         13  paid detail unit works, and it's about five and a

         14  half years old, and it does say that first and

         15  foremost you're a police officer. You're a police

         16  officer whether you're working for the paid detail

         17  unit or not. You know, you're off duty, you're off

         18  duty. You're always a police officer, and you always

         19  are required to react to situations that you see.

         20                 So, we have no fear to have a quicker

         21  police response to an incident where police

         22  appropriately need to be there, and they should

         23  have, by the way, they don't always have radios,

         24  they should have radios, they should have an ability

         25  to contact the local precinct if there's something
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          2  going on outside or inside the club that they want

          3  people who are on duty to respond to. We would have

          4  no problem with that being built into the cost of

          5  the paid detail unit. Of course they should have the

          6  ability to communicate directly with their precinct

          7  because they are first and foremost police officers,

          8  which is why we want them there. We could put all

          9  the private security we want outside, it doesn't

         10  have the same deterrent impact as a police officer.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. If we did

         12  pass this bill it would obviously be expensive.

         13  Police officers cost more than security. Obviously

         14  some high-end places would be able to afford it, so

         15  how extensive do you think the participation in this

         16  program would be?

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, we do think that

         18  the concept that was put in Community Board 5's

         19  resolution of the ability of smaller places to pool

         20  the resources is a good one. Since we're not looking

         21  for the police officer to be inside, since their

         22  outside, their beat let's say would be a block.

         23                 If there are three places on that

         24  block, all who sell liquor and are open late at

         25  night and see the benefit of it, we think it would
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          2  be an excellent idea to allow those three places to

          3  pool the cost because, again, it's the entire block

          4  that is impacted by their presence, and the entire

          5  block that would benefit from the paid detail unit.

          6                 So, we think that would, the small

          7  places that would probably mitigate against the

          8  cost, and large places could probably afford it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Does that occur

         10  now, pooling of costs, in any other area?

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So that would be

         13  done through our legislation or through the paid

         14  detail unit?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, I think the

         16  legislation would just permit the vendors, they call

         17  the clients or the paid detail units, your

         18  legislation would permit the vendor or the client to

         19  be multiple people, you know, sharing the expense as

         20  it gets billed. They do the billing, and this way it

         21  could get billed, you know a third, a third, a

         22  third, or a half a half.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are there any

         24  other amendments that you would suggest?

         25                 MR. RASHY: I just want to add a
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          2  comment to the issue of the direct or indirect

          3  payment. I didn't quite understand, for example, the

          4  issue of what happens if a community board itself

          5  wanted to pay for a paid detail unit, what would

          6  stop the community board from pooling resources, or

          7  a Business Improvement District for pooling

          8  resources to put a cop on the street? Or for that

          9  matter, the New York Nightlife Association, which

         10  doesn't own an actual liquor license, or another

         11  example would be, for example, in the situation

         12  where my club, Irving Plaza, the liquor licensee was

         13  actually a separate business from the company that

         14  was actually producing the shows or promoting the

         15  concerts.

         16                 It seems to me that there is sort of

         17  another example of the Police Department sort of

         18  being against this idea in looking for certain ways

         19  to get out of it rather than looking for creative

         20  solutions.

         21                 MR. RABIN: We even, in our own

         22  undercover attempt years ago, called the paid detail

         23  unit and said I am a landlord of a building on a

         24  lower east side that has a bar in it and I'm getting

         25  complaints from the nearby neighborhood, I would
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          2  like to hire, you know, the paid detail unit, and

          3  they wouldn't allow it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Regarding

          5  community boards, they have no money they tell us,

          6  that's why they would not hire anyone.

          7                 MR. RABIN: I guess, Peter, what I

          8  meant was more oriented around a Business

          9  Improvement District or a group of businesses on the

         10  street, or even residents to get together to pay for

         11  it.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: I do quickly want to

         13  give you some comments on Intro. 395. It's a new

         14  idea. I don't want to say in favor of or opposed. I

         15  have some concerns, I'd like to think about it some

         16  more. A few of the concerns that I had was that the

         17  way it is written now seems to be an awfully blank

         18  check that is being provided to the Police

         19  Department to come up with virtually any type of

         20  program that they want of any potentially unlimited

         21  expense that they want, you know, over these

         22  businesses that they seem to feel they have some

         23  sort of adversarial relationship with.

         24                 I think the bill would need specific

         25  solutions, such as the metal detector, not to be so
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          2  open-ended.

          3                 And as I said before, to a certain

          4  extent I think it's a solution in search of a

          5  problem, because the problem is really not inside

          6  the places, but outside, and so the bill wouldn't

          7  even kick in in most of the situations that you

          8  described because the establishment was not in

          9  violation of any section of 265 of the penal law,

         10  when people do not bring weapons inside the place,

         11  but are removed from the place and then go to their

         12  cars and they shoot each other outside. They're not

         13  in violation of section 265 of the penal law.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, there was

         15  actually a recent incident in Times Square where

         16  there were weapons that were used inside a club, and

         17  that's what prompted --

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: And to where there are

         19  incidents, it is so rare, you know it is such a rare

         20  -- that, you know, I don't think it's an

         21  industry-wide issue, which is why we're not overly

         22  concerned one way or the other here, it's a rarity.

         23                 Like the Police Department, I also

         24  think Section 265 of the penal law is also very

         25  broad, containing dozens of different types of
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          2  offenses, but my conclusion is a little different.

          3  It seems to be many of these should not seem to

          4  warrant this type of intervention.

          5                 If somebody sneaks in certain type of

          6  bullet, which is a violation of Section 265, I don't

          7  think necessarily near possession of some of these

          8  items that we would not want inside the club, but

          9  the mere possession or sneaking in of one and then

         10  leaving without any incident should necessary

         11  require this type of intervention.

         12                 And since they're so concerned about

         13  preemption, I think they need to also look at

         14  preemption of State Liquor Law on this issue,

         15  because they do regulate issues such as disorderly

         16  premises and hours of operation and the like. I'm

         17  not saying it is an issue, but certainly one that

         18  needs to be looked at.

         19                 Also, last but not least, 30 days to

         20  implement, you know, as Councilman Reed said, is

         21  simply not realistic, given the types of things that

         22  they mention, all of which would require

         23  construction, which would require permits from the

         24  Buildings Department or Fire Department or

         25  approvals, I mean you can't get approvals in 30
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          2  days, let alone implement.

          3                 You may want to give them 30 days or

          4  60 days to commit to agree to the plan and then, you

          5  know, how long it's implemented is often subject to

          6  other City agencies. I certainly don't want anybody

          7  to be in a situation where they're subject to a fine

          8  because a sister city agency hasn't approved the

          9  plan fast enough or is hard to get competent people

         10  to install a lot of these things.

         11                 So, on this one, we'd like to talk to

         12  you more about it and work with you more, but

         13  overall we think the best cure for the handful of

         14  places that have violent incidents are better

         15  policing and paid detail.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We'll have the

         17  best counsel in the City Council, Ted Baecher, give

         18  you a call to discuss that with you.

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thanks.

         21                 Council Member Reed.

         22                 I will just introduce Council Member

         23  DeBlasio, who has joined us. Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 I'm listening to this, and I'm in

          3  support of the bill overall, Mr. Bookman, but maybe

          4  I'm mistaken. But you make it sound as if the image

          5  that I have that this paid detail is going to run

          6  around giving out summonses and locking people up,

          7  and my observation often times of police outside of

          8  events is that other than the perimeter of the

          9  place, you know, mayhem could be occurring outside

         10  and they're not particularly going to get involved

         11  in it.

         12                 So, I'm not sure you haven't given

         13  out summonses for handing out flyers and traffic

         14  tickets and all kind of things, so is that the

         15  expectation that you have?

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think the expectation,

         17  Councilman, is that the deterrent, the deterrent

         18  impact of the uniformed police officer outside on

         19  the block, outside of an establishment, will create

         20  a situation where these violations will not take

         21  place. So, these summonses will not have to be

         22  issued.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: I hope, anyway.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: New Yorkers are
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          2  an interesting breed. So that's your hope that just

          3  because, you know, the big, bad boogieman is

          4  standing there, everybody is going to behave. So

          5  when they don't, then what is your expectation?

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: When they don't, then I

          7  think pursuant to the Police Department's own rules

          8  concerning paid detail, I think the cop has to act

          9  as a cop, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is there any

         11  time when you think the cop isn't going to act as a

         12  cop?

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do you know, are

         15  these cops carrying radios, or if things get out of

         16  hand they can then call the police? How does that

         17  work?

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: I don't know if they

         19  currently are. I mean, the Police Officer who

         20  testified said they sometimes are I think, and

         21  sometimes not. We believe it should be a

         22  requirement, and, you know, whatever the cost of

         23  that is, it should be folded into the hourly

         24  billing.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do we know what
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          2  that is in other cities, that you sort of identified

          3  as having positive results with this?

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: Do we know what?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: If they're

          6  carrying radios, if they're able to contact the

          7  police themselves, if they need back-up or support?

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: I do not know the answer

          9  to that question in the other cities. I could try to

         10  find out for you.

         11                 MR. RASHY: If I can chime in for one

         12  second? I'm sorry, Councilman Reed.

         13                 At Community Board 4, when we

         14  presented this idea, and they haven't voted on this

         15  yet, the PBA officer who testified at CB 4 said that

         16  they all do carry radios.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

         18                 MR. RASHY: His testimony at CB 4 was

         19  in direct contradiction to the testimony of the

         20  Police Department today. He said paid detail unit

         21  officers carry radios at all times.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, what does

         23  the perimeter mean? How far out is the perimeter?

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Where does perimeter

         25  come from?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: It's my

          3  understanding that we're talking about outside of a

          4  club, right, for the sake of this conversation?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: On the public sidewalk.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So that's all

          7  the way around the block, is that just in front of

          8  the doorway? I mean, suppose there's some police

          9  incident right up on the corner, what's the

         10  expectation?

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think where the police

         12  officer --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Or for that

         14  matter across the street. It's clearly visible to

         15  everybody that's standing there.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is our expectation

         17  that the paid detail officer would be an old

         18  fashioned beat cop, walking the beat, for the few

         19  hours, let's say 12:00 a.m. to 4:00 a.m. that

         20  they're there. That would certainly include seeing

         21  things across the street, and depending on some

         22  locations, it might be walking that beat around the

         23  corner as well. I don't think they're there as a

         24  traffic coordinator. I think the idea is to be a

         25  beat cop and to walk back and forth, not stand just
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          2  in front of the entrance, make their presence seen

          3  and known, and I think, even though New Yorkers are

          4  a strange lot, and I agree, I think we could

          5  certainly cut down on public urination, on illegal

          6  drinking out on the sidewalks, to a certain extent

          7  on horns, illegally double-parked cars so people

          8  honking horns at 3:00 in the morning. I think seeing

          9  that cop go back and forth would have that deterrent

         10  effect, and I think they should, yes, they should

         11  look at both sides of the street and sometimes

         12  around the corner as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I do think

         14  that that's worth either this Committee, or the

         15  industry, looking at sort of establishing some

         16  parameters, because if I hear the complaint that

         17  there was a cop standing there and they didn't do

         18  anything about half a dozen different violations,

         19  usually bicycles on the sidewalk, people, dogs

         20  defecating and not picking it up, and the people

         21  tell me the cop was standing right there. Or we've

         22  often times seen it where everybody knows it was a

         23  drug deal, but the uniformed officer wasn't able to

         24  act or whatever. So, I would on that regard be

         25  concerned about the liability, and if the club is in
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          2  the middle of the block, you know, I could see a

          3  club owner saying, wait, I'm not paying you to run

          4  up and down the block here, I'm paying you to be in

          5  front of my place.

          6                 So, I think there needs to be some

          7  sort of clearly defined parameter. I'm in support of

          8  this as an idea, but I could begin to picture this,

          9  and you know, there's a club owner, clubs tend to

         10  congregate, so you got, there's a picture in the

         11  newspaper this weekend about Chelsea is overrun with

         12  clubs now, so one guy has one and one doesn't and

         13  they're right across the street from each other, now

         14  what happens? Well, that's not my side of the

         15  street. You know, that's unruly behavior, you know,

         16  all the SUVs and the limousines are going to that

         17  club. Of course, if that's happening, the other club

         18  will be closed soon so we won't have that worry.

         19                 So, I think we ought to sort of look

         20  at defining that a little more.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think that's fair.

         22  We'd like to work with the Council on that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, certainly

         25  legitimate concerns.
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          2                 Council Member Dilan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 My question is to Mr. Bookman,

          6  Counsel.

          7                 You stated that this paid detail

          8  program involving bars is in effect in three other

          9  major localities, Boston, Houston and Miami; do you

         10  have any information on how those cities have

         11  limited their liabilities? Or do you know if they

         12  have even, through this program moved to limit their

         13  liability?

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN: My understanding is the

         15  other cities, the liability is handled in no special

         16  way. It's handled as those Police Departments handle

         17  their liability issues for uniformed police

         18  officers, and for police officers not in uniform,

         19  off duty, that get involved in incidents anyway.

         20                 In our reaching out to these other

         21  cities, the issue of liability as a special problem

         22  just never came up. So, it seems that they handle it

         23  in the way they normally handle it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         25                 MR. RABIN: Just one other point. I
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          2  see a note I made when one of the police officers

          3  testified that if an arrest is made by an officer in

          4  the paid detail unit, I forget which Councilperson

          5  answered that question, he then becomes a City cop I

          6  think is what he said. Well, if that's true, then

          7  where is the conflict or the liability issue. If

          8  he's making an arrest as a City cop, then he's

          9  making an arrest as a City cop.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I would

         11  understand that if a paid duty officer was working

         12  at Yankee Stadium and made arrests, that he would

         13  also go back on City time as well. To me that wasn't

         14  much of a consideration. But the liability aspect

         15  was very important, because as say an opposing

         16  attorney, if I were to sue you, I think my interest

         17  would be going after the deeper pockets, which would

         18  be the City of New York, and I think that, you know,

         19  that was an excellent concern, one of the few

         20  concerns that the Commissioner brought up, and I

         21  would like to see that addressed if I'm to support

         22  the legislation.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think the best answer

         24  to that question is the fact that they have hundreds

         25  of clients and they've been doing it for five and a
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          2  half years, and to their knowledge there hasn't been

          3  a single claim against the City, in any of those,

          4  you know, probably thousands of particular events in

          5  which the police were there.

          6                 So, I mean, it seems to be a

          7  non-issue really for their own paid detail unit.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm also

          9  concerned about liability. Is there an insurance

         10  requirement that you think would be appropriate?

         11                 MR. RASHY: Almost all leases that I

         12  know of, all leases that we have from landlords

         13  require umbrella liability policies. Ours is in

         14  excess of a million dollars. I believe that's what

         15  they said was their minimum. I know for Lotus and

         16  for Union bar we're in excess of that, and our new

         17  lease is also in excess of that. So, I can't speak

         18  for all businesses, but it's almost a standard

         19  provision in the lease, landlords want to see that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, Council

         21  Member Yassky.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

         23  you. I just want to thank all the members of the

         24  panel for testifying. I, needless to say, was very

         25  impressed and persuaded by what you had to say. I
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          2  just wondered, for the benefit of my colleagues, Ms.

          3  Barbero, from Community Board 5, I guess -- who I

          4  understand had to go, she is far from the only

          5  community board that's interested, since introducing

          6  this bill we've had other community boards, I'd be

          7  very, very interested in this because they're all

          8  struggling, as we all are, with now to make sure

          9  that neighborhoods are not adversely affected by

         10  successful nightlife business. We want them to be

         11  successful, but we want the neighborhoods to be

         12  protected, and I think you'd find quite a bit of

         13  support in the community for this idea.

         14                 And I wanted to particularly thank

         15  Mr. Rashy, who brought this idea to me in the first

         16  place. I think I know he's been the leading effort

         17  to get the Police Department to take seriously these

         18  issues for some time, and I commend you for all that

         19  work. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         21  Gentile.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I represent a very active nightlife

         25  in Bayridge Brooklyn, Third Avenue and Fifth Avenue,

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  and just to follow-up on Councilman Reed's question,

          3  there are many nightclubs that are two, three on a

          4  block, and in the event that they do not pool their

          5  resources and the vendors, it's not a pooling of

          6  vendors to have a police officer out there as a

          7  security detail; what is that expectation if there

          8  are two or three or four on a block, and one hires a

          9  security under the paid detail program? What is your

         10  expectation? What is their expectation of what

         11  happens on that street?

         12                 MR. RABIN: Well, I'd like to answer

         13  in two ways. One, I think that the nightclub venues

         14  that do choose to make this higher will be perceived

         15  by their neighborhoods as the better venue, in terms

         16  of their liquor license renewal, which comes up

         17  every two years, and will then be less subject to

         18  community opposition when they come up for renewal.

         19  Our goal is to be seen as a good neighbor, as

         20  cooperative with the neighborhood.

         21                 I think you touch on also a broader,

         22  more systemic problem, which I don't know if the

         23  Council is aware of, but there is a catch-22 in

         24  nightlife, most nightlife operators, in fact, almost

         25  all we know, do not call the police when they notice
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          2  incidents occurring in the street, anywhere near

          3  their venue, even if those incidents have nothing to

          4  do with the operation of their nightclub, because if

          5  they do call the police for that, once the police

          6  have arrived and handle whatever the situation is,

          7  they hand the operator a summons for disorderly

          8  premise which then goes against their liquor license

          9  renewal application.

         10                 So, there's almost two problems here:

         11  One, we think the paid detail unit will be a great

         12  deterrent to that activity; but, two, I think at

         13  some point we have to figure out a way to address

         14  the fact that there is a much higher level of

         15  hostility within the Administration and the Police

         16  Department to working with nightlife and to penalize

         17  nightlife operators from trying to avail themselves

         18  of what we think is their taxpaying right to use the

         19  police to their benefit, as well as to the

         20  community's benefit. It's a two-fold problem.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: Specifically, Councilman

         22  Reed's and your point is an interesting one that I

         23  do need to think more about, but it does seem to me

         24  that whatever, it seems like the concern is that

         25  that paid detail unit officer, if he's working for
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          2  that venue and not that venue, will be more

          3  concerned with stopping, keeping things quiet and

          4  orderly outside this one and won't be concerned

          5  about that, that other one, but it still seems to me

          6  that since there is nobody there at all right now,

          7  if we're 50 percent, if the block is 50 percent

          8  better than it was before, that's a good thing, not

          9  a bad thing. It's not like we're taking a uniformed

         10  officer and taking him away from the location and

         11  replacing him with a paid detail who has limited

         12  concern.

         13                 So, I guess my initial instinct is

         14  whatever improvement we could make, we can do what

         15  we can do, but, you know, I hear what you're saying

         16  and I just want to make sure that, you know, the

         17  Police Department isn't correct in any potential

         18  conflict problem with the officer not reporting what

         19  goes on across the street, and I suppose if he has a

         20  radio, that would take care of that, even though he

         21  might be more directly concerned about people not

         22  congregating in front of the location that he has

         23  been retained through the PDU to be responsible for,

         24  you know, et cetera.

         25                 So, it's a good point that needs to
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          2  be thought of, but I still think the situation is

          3  better, it's 50 percent better than it was before.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It would seem

          5  to me that would be more of a direct conflict of

          6  interest in his role as a police officer, to see an

          7  incident going on down the block where he has not

          8  been hired at that venue and be in a situation where

          9  he's at a certain venue but sees something going on

         10  somewhere else. I mean, to me that sounds like more

         11  of a direct conflict of interest.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: It's more of a reporting

         13  issue than I think as a conflict issue. I mean, as a

         14  lawyer conflict of interest is, I think is a term

         15  that we're bandying about a little bit too broadly

         16  here. It's really not a conflict for a police

         17  officer to, you know, call in something whether he's

         18  in the PD or not, and it's really not a conflict for

         19  him to ignore it. It may be inappropriate activity,

         20  it may be something opposed to required to do as a

         21  police officer, as opposed to a conflict of

         22  interest.

         23                 I mean, I don't see any conflict

         24  here, simply because the establishment of the liquor

         25  license and then working outside. That, to me,
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          2  doesn't seem to be a conflict. The only conflict

          3  they raised was the fact that they enforce laws

          4  against places with liquor establishments, but I

          5  think we all agree that they also have the ability

          6  to enforce laws against, a whole variety of laws

          7  against all the places that they allow themselves to

          8  be hired for.

          9                 So, I think it's more an issue of

         10  reporting and I think we do need to have perhaps,

         11  you know, parameter rules.

         12                 I don't know what they do now, and

         13  they seem, frankly, you know, didn't know themselves

         14  or not too forthcoming in answering your questions

         15  about what do they do now, and there are, you know,

         16  somebody is steeling a car right in front of them

         17  and they're, you know, they're working for the bank,

         18  or if there's a robbery in the bank, and they're

         19  working for Dime Savings Bank outside on the street,

         20  what do they do now? Is it a conflict? You know, I

         21  think not, even though you have regulations

         22  concerning banks own security requirement that they

         23  can issue violations to, they seem to have worked it

         24  out.

         25                 If they want to do this, they can sit
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          2  down with you and work it out, but I think there

          3  needs to be a desire on their part.

          4                 MR. RASHY: I want to just add that,

          5  this is sort of a first step towards shaking the

          6  whole psychology of the relationship between the

          7  administration, the Police Department and

          8  communities and clubs.

          9                 I remember, you know, just in

         10  general, New York is changing from much more of a

         11  commercial and manufacturing City to much more of a

         12  residential City, and therefore residential

         13  development is occurring in commercial districts

         14  much more than it did 20 or 30 years ago.

         15                 There was an incident at Irving Plaza

         16  about five years ago that specifically will give you

         17  an example of this psychology.

         18                 We had about 800 people coming out on

         19  the street about 11:00 and on Irving Place, which

         20  it's a two-way street, it's very hard for people to

         21  get in and out of cabs without causing some traffic.

         22  So, as always, when there is a concert letting out,

         23  there was a back-up of cars. But the crowd was

         24  pretty orderly, there wasn't a lot of noise, and a

         25  police car pulls up behind a row of parked or
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          2  double-parked cabs, gets on their bull horn radio,

          3  starts yelling at the cars to move, and then when

          4  they don't move, turns on his siren and turns on his

          5  lights.  That woke up the neighborhood, not the

          6  people walking on the street.

          7                 So, there's a general need to

          8  recognize that New York City, and particularly

          9  Manhattan, I'm not just trying to take anything away

         10  from other boroughs, is much more of a bedroom

         11  community, and the psychology needs to change. The

         12  psychology that David was referring to, is the

         13  clubs' owners don't feel comfortable calling the

         14  police because they know they're going to get a

         15  violation. We would love to build a relationship

         16  with a security personnel, actually meet with the

         17  police and get trained by the police - what do you

         18  do with a patron who is unruly who gets into a fight

         19  in a bar? What do you do with somebody who is

         20  urinating on the street? When do you call 9-1-1?

         21  When do you call 3-1-1? Those kind of conversations

         22  need to start to happen. They're not happening now.

         23  We believe the paid detail unit is the first step in

         24  creating a much broader discussion about the

         25  relationship between neighborhoods, nightclubs and
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          2  the City as a whole.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          4  Council member.

          5                 Council Member DeBlasio.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I want to thank Councilman Vallone

          9  for holding this hearing, and Council Member Yassky

         10  for putting forward this legislation which I'm going

         11  to sign onto. I think it's very important and

         12  timely. I want to thank Andrew Rashy in particular,

         13  who did a very persuasive job of explaining to me a

         14  few weeks ago how this all works, and how important

         15  this is.

         16                 I think the last point is crucial.

         17  Just very briefly, the economic impact. The City has

         18  changed. I could tell you in neighborhoods I

         19  represent, like Carroll Gardens and Park Slope,

         20  growing nightlife industry, crucial to our

         21  neighborhood, providing jobs, part of the identity

         22  of our neighborhood, but at the same time I think

         23  that cultural point, that there's still such a

         24  profound disconnect between community, the nightlife

         25  industry and the police, how do we bridge that? I
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          2  think this bill is a crucial step in the right

          3  direction.

          4                 I would also say, I think there's a

          5  philosophical point that's very, very important

          6  here, I think our approach to public safety, and

          7  Chairman Vallone has done a lot to exemplify this in

          8  the legislation he's put forward is, our approach to

          9  public safety should be we don't want to lose a

         10  single life. We don't want to have a single person

         11  direly injured. When you think about the exchange

         12  earlier with Council Member Yassky and officials

         13  from the Police Department, it's obvious that if you

         14  have additional police in uniform on the streets,

         15  you have a greater chance of proactively stopping a

         16  problem before it starts, and you don't leave in the

         17  hands of people who are not sufficiently trained,

         18  the decisions about how to deal with a crisis. And,

         19  of course, that could be a fatal decision, someone

         20  could make the wrong decision who is not trained to

         21  handle it, and we could lose a life that way.

         22                 So, if people are willing to pay the

         23  price and provide a public good at the same time, I

         24  think we should be applauding them and facilitating

         25  them.
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          2                 So, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          4  Council member. And I should say that Council Member

          5  DeBlasio is not a member of this Committee but feels

          6  so strongly about this that he made time in his

          7  schedule to be here today.

          8                 Last question, and then we're done, I

          9  guess. I see a potential problem here, and I want

         10  your help in dealing with it.

         11                 Right now a paid detail unit is the

         12  discretion of the Police Commissioner. He determines

         13  who is eligible for this and who is not. Should we

         14  pass this bill, it would still encompass the

         15  discretion of the Police Commissioner who can very

         16  easily just say that most if not all bars don't fall

         17  into the category to deserve this type of situation.

         18                 How do you recommend dealing with

         19  that?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think that is why this

         21  478-A version of the bill first of all limited this

         22  type of employment through the paid detail unit

         23  only, which the original version did not. And

         24  clearly we're only looking to do this through the

         25  paid detail unit program and all the checks and
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          2  balances that come with that.

          3                 But I think that's why the word shall

          4  as opposed to may was put in there, because it is

          5  then City law that places with liquor licenses shall

          6  be eligible for the paid detail unit program, and

          7  then, therefore, in my opinion, it could not form

          8  the basis for a denial of a request.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It says shall be

         10  eligible. It doesn't say shall receive.

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: Shall be eligible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Still gives them

         13  discretion.

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, I think they would

         15  certainly be subject to appropriate Article 78

         16  procedure if they denied a liquor license

         17  establishment's request for paid detail and their

         18  only basis was that the place has a liquor license

         19  once you pass this legislation. If there were other

         20  reasons, and they're an inappropriate hire, so be

         21  it. So, I think that's why the shall is important.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, so you do

         23  think it would fall into the purview of an article

         24  78 and you would be covered under that --

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: Whether they were acting

                                                            116

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  arbitrary and capriciously within their purview and

          3  within their discretion.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Well,

          5  thank you, Mr. Bookman, Mr. Rashy, Mr. Rabin, for

          6  coming down today.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know you've

          9  been here before --

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: Members, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, all.

         12                 This meeting is adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:19 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of November 2003.
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